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M.K. Exim (India) Limited
 ( L63040RJ1992PLC007111)CIN:

Registered Ofϐice: G1/150, Garment Zone, E.P.I.P., RIICO Industrial Area,
Sitapura, Tonk Road, Jaipur-302022

Phone: Fax:+91 141- 3937501, 3937500,  +91-141-3937502
E-mail: mkexim@mkexim.com, complianceofϐicer@mkexim.com, 

Web-Site: www.mkexim.com

NOTICE 
NOTICE  is hereby given that the 29th Annual General MeeƟng of M k Exim (India) Limited will be held on 
Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at 11.00 A.M IST through Video Conference / Other Audio Visual Means, to 
transact the following business. The venue of the meeƟng shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the 
Company at G-1/150, Garment Zone, E.P.I.P., RIICO Industrial Area, Sitapura, Tonk Road, Jaipur- :302022

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements as well as Audited Consolidated Financial 

Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2021 together with Report of Auditors and the 
Board of Directors thereon;

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2021 and the Reports of the Board of Directors' and Auditors thereon as 
circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manish Murlidhar Dialani (DIN: 05201121), who reƟres by rotaƟon and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

   “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of SecƟon 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Manish Murlidhar Dialani (DIN: 05201121), who reƟres by rotaƟon at this Annual 
General MeeƟng, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

2

Place: Jaipur  
Dated: , 226 August 02th 1



Annual Report - 20 -20220 1

0000

Notes

1. Considering the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its circular no  
02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 read together with circulars Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular 
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 (collecƟvely referred to as “MCA 
Circulars”), permiƩed convening the Annual General MeeƟng (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or 
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without physical presence of the members at a common venue. In 
accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (”the Act”) and the SecuriƟes and 
Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (“SEBI LisƟng 
Re gu l aƟon s” )  c i rc u lar  n o .  SEB I / HO / CF D / CM D 1 / C IR / P/ 2 0 2 0 / 7 9  d ate d  M ay,  1 2  2 0 2 0  an d 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15  January, 2021th , the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / 
OAVM without physical presence of the Members at a common venue

2. The deemed venue for twenty-ninth e-AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and RegulaƟon 44 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons & 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, 
May 05, 2020 and January 13, 2021 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voƟng to its Members in respect 
of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitaƟng voƟng through electronic means, as the 
authorized e-VoƟng's agency. The facility of casƟng votes by a member using remote e-voƟng as well as the e-
voƟng system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and aŌer the scheduled Ɵme of the 
commencement of the MeeƟng by following the procedure menƟoned in the NoƟce. The facility of parƟcipaƟon 
at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This 
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, InsƟtuƟonal 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit CommiƩee, NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to aƩend the 
AGM without restricƟon on account of first come first served basis.

5. The aƩendance of the Members aƩending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
ascertaining the quorum under SecƟon 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. A member enƟtled to aƩend and vote at the AGM is enƟtled to appoint a proxy to aƩend and vote on his / her 
behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since the AGM is being held in accordance with the 
Circulars through VC, the facility for the appointment of proxies by the members will not be available and hence 
the Proxy Form are not annexed to this NoƟce. However, in pursuance of SecƟon 112 and SecƟon 113 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, representaƟves of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or 
body corporate can aƩend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voƟng.

7. InsƟtuƟonal/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned 
copy(pdf/jpg format) of its board or governing body's resoluƟon/authorizaƟon, etc., authorizing their 
representaƟve to aƩend the e-AGM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voƟng. The said 
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resoluƟon/authorizaƟon shall be sent to the scruƟnizer by email through its registered email address to 
parikhanshu26gmail.com with a copy marked to investoragm@mkexim.com

8. The Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from   Thursday, 23rd 

September 2021 to Wednesday, 29  September 2021 th (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the annual general 
meeƟng.

9. Details as required in RegulaƟon 36(3) of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirement) RegulaƟons,   
2015 ('LisƟng RegulaƟons') in respect of the Directors seeking re-appointment/appointment at the AGM are 
provided in annexure-1 of this noƟce Requisite declaraƟons have been received from the Directors seeking re-
appointment. The Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed for a term of 5 years in accordance 
with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and are not eligible to reƟre by rotaƟon.

10. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular dated 20th April, 2018 has mandated registraƟon 
of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account Details for all securiƟes holders. Members holding shares 
in physical form are therefore, requested to submit their PAN and Bank Account Details to Beetal Financial & 
Computer services (P) Ltd, New Delhi by sending a duly signed leƩer along with self-aƩested copy of PAN Card and 
original cancelled cheque. The original cancelled cheque should bear the name of the Member. In the alternaƟve 
Members are requested to submit a copy of bank passbook / statement aƩested by the bank. Members holding 
shares in demat form are requested to submit the aforesaid informaƟon to their respecƟve Depository ParƟcipant.

11. As per RegulaƟon 40 of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, as amended, securiƟes of listed companies can be transferred 
only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or 
transposiƟon of securiƟes. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of 
porƞolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converƟng their 
holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company's Registrars and Transfer 
Agents, for assistance in this regard.

12. Members are requested to inƟmate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, 
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominaƟons, power of aƩorney, 
bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to 
their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to Beetal Financial & Computer services (P) Ltd 
(company's RTA) in case of physicals shares. Members holding shares in physical form are also requested to submit 
their specimen signature duly aƩested by their bank.

13. SecƟon 72 of the Act provides for facility to the members for making nominaƟon in respect NominaƟon facility:   
of the shares held by them in the Company. Members holding shares in single name and who have not registered 
the nominaƟon should submit to the Company form SH 13 for making nominaƟon. Members holding the shares in 
electronic form should submit the form to their depository parƟcipants. Members can change the nominaƟon by 
filing form SH14 with the Company (in case of shares held in physical form) or to the depository parƟcipant (in case 
shares are in electronic form)

14.  The register of members under the Act and the relevant rules is required to be UpdaƟon of members details:
maintained with addiƟonal details such as PAN details, email address, bank details for payment of dividend, etc. A 
form for capturing these details is appended at the end of this annual report. Members holding shares on physical 
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form are requested to submit the filled form to the Company and members holding shares in demat form are 
requested to submit the form to their respecƟve depository parƟcipants.

15. In case of joint holders aƩending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be enƟtled to vote.

16. In terms of secƟons 101 and 136 of the Act, read with the rules made thereunder, the listed companies may send 
the noƟce of AGM and the annual report, including financial statements, board report, etc. by electronic mode. 
Pursuant to the said provisions of the Act read with MCA Circulars, SEBI Circular dated 12 May 2020, NoƟce of 29  th

AGM along with the Annual Report for FY2021 is being sent only through electronic mode to those members 
whose email addresses are registered with the Company/depositories. Members may note that the NoƟce and 
Annual Report for FY2021 will also be available on the Company's website atwww.mkexim.com and website of the 
stock exchanges i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com 

17. To receive communicaƟons through electronic means, including Annual Reports and NoƟces, members are 
requested to kindly register/update their email address with their respecƟve depository parƟcipant, where shares 
are held in electronic form. In case of shares held in physical form, members are advised to register their e-mail 
address with Beetal Financial & Computer services (P) Ltd, BEETAL HOUSE, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Behind LSC, 
New Delhi – 110062 at their e-mail id beetalrta@gmail.com.

18. Further, those members who have not registered their email addresses and in consequence could not be served 
the Annual Report for FY2021 and NoƟce of 29  AGM, may temporarily get themselves registered with Beetal th

Financial & Computer services (P) Ltd, BEETAL HOUSE, 3rd Floor, 99,  Madangir, Behind LSC, New Delhi – 110062 at 
their e-mail id beetalrta@gmail.com.

19. In case a person becomes a member of the Company aŌer dispatch of AGM NoƟce, and is a member as on the cut-
off date for e-voƟng, i.e., Wednesday 22 September, 2021, such person may obtain the user id and password from nd

Beetal Financial & Computer services (P) Ltd by email request on beetalrta@gmail.com.

20. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the NoƟce calling 
the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.mkexim.com The NoƟce can also be accessed 
from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.  The AGM NoƟce is also 
disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-VoƟng facility and e-voƟng system 
during the AGM) i.e. www. .comevoƟngindia  

21. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had noƟfied provisions relaƟng to unpaid / unclaimed dividend under SecƟons 
124 and 125 of Companies Act, 2013 and Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016 (IEPF Rules). As per these Rules, dividends which are not encashed / claimed by the 
shareholder for a period of seven consecuƟve years shall be transferred to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon 
Fund (IEPF) Authority. The IEPF Rules mandate the companies to transfer such shares of Members of whom 
dividends remain unpaid / unclaimed for a period of seven consecuƟve years to the demat account of IEPF 
Authority. Hence, the Company urges all the Members to encash / claim their respecƟve dividend during the 
prescribed period .The details of the unpaid / unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 30th September, 
2020 (date of last AGM) are available on the website of the Company and on Ministry of Corporate Affairs' website. 
The Members whose dividend / shares as transferred to the IEPF Authority can now claim their shares from the

00005



Annual Report - 20 -20220 1

` Authority by following the Refund Procedure as detailed on the website of IEPF Authority 
hƩp://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.html

22. The Company has appointed M/s. Anshu Parikh & Associates (proprietor Ms. Anshu Parikh), PCS (Membership no. 
FCS 9785), as the scruƟnizer for conducƟng the remote e-voƟng and the voƟng process at the AGM in a fair and 
transparent manner.

23. Since the meeƟng will be conducted through VC/OAVM facility, the route map is not annexed to this NoƟce.

24. The Company has been maintaining, , the following statutory registers at its registered office at Jaipur, inter alia
Rajasthan

 i) Register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested under secƟon 189 of the Act.
 ii) Register of directors and key managerial personnel and their shareholding under secƟon 170 of the Act.

25. InstrucƟons for remote e-voƟng, joining the e-AGM and e-voƟng at e-AGM are as follows:

A. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

a. In terms of the provisions of secƟon 108 of the Act, read with rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014, as amended (hereinaŌer called 'the Rules' for the purpose of this secƟon of the 
NoƟce) and regulaƟon 44 of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voƟng to 
exercise votes on the items of business given in the NoƟce through electronic voƟng system, to members holding 
shares as on sday 2  September, 2021 being the cut-off date fixed for determining voƟng rights of Wedne 2nd

members, enƟtled to parƟcipate in the remote e-voƟng process, through the e-voƟng plaƞorm provided by CDSL 
or to vote at the AGM. Person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this NoƟce for informaƟon 
purposes only.

B. THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:
 ( ) The voƟng period begins on  and ends on  During this I <26.09.2021 at 9:00 a.m.> <28.09.2021 at 5:00 p.m.>.

period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 
the cut-off date (record date) of  may cast their vote electronically. The e-voƟng module shall <22.09.2021>,
be disabled by CDSL for voƟng thereaŌer.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeƟng date would not be enƟtled to vote at the 
meeƟng venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. under RegulaƟon 44 SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, 
of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015, listed enƟƟes are required to provide remote e-voƟng facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 
shareholders' resoluƟons. However, it has been observed that the parƟcipaƟon by the public non-
insƟtuƟonal shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

  Currently, there are mulƟple e-voƟng service providers (ESPs) providing e-voƟng facility to listed enƟƟes in 
India. This necessitates registraƟon on various ESPs and maintenance of mulƟple user IDs and passwords 
by the shareholders. 

  In order to increase the efficiency of the voƟng process, pursuant to a public consultaƟon, it has been 
decided to enable e-voƟng to , all the demat account holders by way of a single login credenƟal, through 
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository ParƟcipants. Demat account holders would 
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be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitaƟng 
seamless authenƟcaƟon but also enhancing ease and convenience of parƟcipaƟng in e-voƟng process. 

 (iv) In terms of  on e-VoƟng SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securiƟes in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository ParƟcipants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to 
access e-VoƟng facility.

  Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular Login method for e-VoƟng and joining virtual meeƟngs , for Individual 
shareholders holding securiƟes in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

00007



Annual Report - 20 -20220 1Annual Report - 20 -20220 1

Password opƟon available at abovemenƟoned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securiƟes in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

(V) Login method for e-VoƟng and joining virtual meeƟngs for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than 
individual holding in Demat form.

 1. The shareholders should log on to the e-voƟng website www. .com evoƟngindia
 2. Click on “Shareholders” module.
 3. Now enter your User ID 
  a.For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
  b.For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
  c.Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company.
 4. Next enter the Image VerificaƟon as displayed and Click on Login.
 5. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evoƟngindia.com and voted on an 

earlier e-voƟng of any company, then your exisƟng password is to be used. 
 6. If you are a first Ɵme user follow the steps given below:

(Vi)  AŌer entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(Vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selecƟon screen. However, 

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password CreaƟon' menu wherein they are required 
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also 
used by the demat holders for voƟng for resoluƟons of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voƟng through CDSL plaƞorm. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
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password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidenƟal.
(Viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voƟng on the resoluƟons 

contained in this NoƟce.
(iX)  Click on the EVSN for the  on which you choose to vote.M.K.EXIM (INDIA) LIMITED
(X)  On the voƟng page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the opƟon “YES/NO” for  

voƟng. Select the opƟon YES or NO as desired. The opƟon YES implies that you assent to the ResoluƟon and 
opƟon NO implies that you dissent to the ResoluƟon.

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the enƟre ResoluƟon details.
(xii) AŌer selecƟng the resoluƟon you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmaƟon box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resoluƟon, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” opƟon on the VoƟng page.
(xv) If a demat account holder has forgoƩen the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verificaƟon 

code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
(xvi) AddiƟonal Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote VoƟng only.
  Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log 

on to www.evoƟngindia.comand register themselves in the “Corporates” module.
  A scanned copy of the RegistraƟon Form bearing the stamp and sign of the enƟty should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoƟng@gmail.com. 
  AŌer receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. 

The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
  The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoƟng@cdslindia.com and on 

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 
  A scanned copy of the Board ResoluƟon and Power of AƩorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of 

the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scruƟnizer to verify the same.
  AlternaƟvely Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board ResoluƟon/ Authority 

leƩer etc. together with aƩested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized 
to vote, to the ScruƟnizer and to the Company at the email address viz; .com com, if investoragm@mkexim
they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voƟng system for the scruƟnizer to 
verify the same.

C. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

 i. The procedure for aƩending meeƟng & e-VoƟng on the day of the AGM is same as the instrucƟons 
menƟoned above for e-voƟng.

 ii. The link for VC/OAVM to aƩend meeƟng will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed 
aŌer successful login as per the instrucƟons menƟoned above for e-voƟng. 

 iii. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-VoƟng will be eligible to aƩend the meeƟng. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

 iv. Members aƩending the e-AGM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under secƟon 
103 of the Act

 v. Shareholders are encouraged to join the MeeƟng through Laptops / IPads for beƩer experience.
 vi. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeƟng.
 vii. Please note that ParƟcipants ConnecƟng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecƟng via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to FluctuaƟon in their respecƟve network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN ConnecƟon to miƟgate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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` viii. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask quesƟons during the meeƟng may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance during the period from 26 September 2021 
(from 9.00 a.m.) to 27 September 2021 (upto 5.00 p.m.) menƟoning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at beetalrta@gmail.com and copy to company email id 
investoragm@mkexim.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries 
may send their queries in advance during the period from 26 September 2021 (from 9.00 a.m.) to 27 
September 2021 (upto 5.00 p.m.) menƟoning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at beetalrta@gmail.com and copy to company email id investoragm@mkexim.com. These 
queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email. Please note that only quesƟons of the 
members holding the shares as on cut-off date will be considered. The Company reserves the right to 
restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of Ɵme for the e-AGM. 

 ix. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask quesƟons during the meeƟng.

 x. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 
vote on the ResoluƟons through remote e-VoƟng and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-VoƟng system available during the AGM.

 xi. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voƟng available during the AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not parƟcipated in the meeƟng through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voƟng during the meeƟng is available only to 
the shareholders aƩending the meeƟng.

D. PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES: 

 I. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share cerƟficate (front and back), PAN (self aƩested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self aƩested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to .beetalrta@gmail.com

 ii. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respecƟve Depository 
ParƟcipant (DP).

 iii. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respecƟve 
Depository ParƟcipant (DP) which is mandatory while e-VoƟng & joining virtual meeƟngs through 
Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding aƩending AGM & e-VoƟng from the CDSL e-VoƟng System, you can write an 
email helpesk.evoƟng@cdsindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voƟng by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.RakeshDalvi, Sr. 
Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal 
MillCompounds,  N M Joshi  Marg,  Lower Parel  (East),  Mumbai -  400013 or send an email  to  
helpesk.evoƟng@cdsindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43.

E. General InstrucƟons:
 I.   The Chairman shall formally propose to the members parƟcipaƟng through VC/OAVM facility to vote 

on the resoluƟons as set out in the NoƟce of the 29 AGM and announce the start of the casƟng of vote th

through the e-voƟng system of CDSL.
 ii.  The ScruƟnizer shall, immediately aŌer the conclusion of voƟng at the e-AGM, first count the votes cast 

at the meeƟng, thereaŌer unblock the votes through e-voƟng and make a consolidated ScruƟnisers' 
report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any.
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 iii. The scruƟnizer shall submit her report to the Chairman of the Company, as the case may be, who shall 
declare the result of the voƟng. The results declared along with the scruƟniser's report shall be placed 
on the Company's website : www.mkexim.com  and shall also be communicated to the stock 
exchanges. 

Place: Jaipur  
Dated: , 226 August 02th 1

ANNEXURE-1
InformaƟon pursuant to the LisƟng RegulaƟons and Secretarial Standards in respect to

 Appointment/Re-appointment/appointment by rotaƟon of Directors
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Form No. SH-13 NominaƟon Form
(Pursuant to SecƟon 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(1)

 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014)
To,
The Company Secretary, 
M.K.Exim (India) Limited 
G1/150, Garment Zone, E.P.I.P., 
RIICO Industrial Area, Sitapura, Tonk 
Road, Jaipur-302022

I/ We the holder(s) of the securiƟes parƟculars of which are given ___________________________________
hereunder wish to make nominaƟon and do hereby nominate the following persons in whom shall vest, all the 
rights in respect of such securiƟes in the event of my/our death.

1. PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nominaƟon is being made) –

2. PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE/S —

(a) Name:

(b) Date of Birth:

(c) Father's/Mother's/Spouse's name:

(d) OccupaƟon:

(e) NaƟonality:

(f) Address:

(g) E-mail id:

(h) RelaƟonship with the security holder:

3. IN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR –

(a) Date of birth:

(b) Date of aƩaining majority:

(c) Name of guardian:

(d) Address of guardian:

Name: .................................................................................... Address: .............................................................

............................................................................................................................................................................

Name of the Security Holder(s): ........................................................................................................................

Signatures: ................................................... Witness with name and address:.................................................
...............................................................................................................................................................................
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InstrucƟons:

1. Please read the instrucƟons given below very carefully and follow the same to the leƩer. If the form is not 
filled as per instrucƟons, the same will be rejected.

2. The nominaƟon can be made by individuals only. Non individuals including society, trust, body corporate, 
partnership firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided Family, holder of power of aƩorney cannot nominate. If the Shares 
are held jointly all joint holders shall sign (as per the specimen registered with the Company) the nominaƟon 
form.

3. A minor can be nominated by a holder of Shares and in that event the name and address of the Guardian shall 
be given by the holder.

4. The nominee shall not be a trust, society, body corporate, partnership Firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided Family, 
or a power of aƩorney holder. A non-resident Indian can be a nominee on re-patriable basis.

5. Transfer of Shares in favour of a nominee shall be a valid discharge by a Company against the legal heir(s).

6. Only one person can be nominated for a given folio.

7. Details of all holders in a folio need to be filled; else the request will be rejected.

8. The nominaƟon will be registered only when it is complete in all respects including the signature of (a) all 
registered holders (as per specimen lodged with the Company) and (b) the nominee.

9. Whenever the Shares in the given folio are enƟrely transferred or dematerialised, then this nominaƟon will 
stand rescinded.

10. Upon receipt of a duly executed nominaƟon form, the Registrars & Transfer Agent of the Company will 
register the form and allot a registraƟon number. The registraƟon number and folio no. should be quoted by 
the nominee in all future correspondence.

11. The nominaƟon can be varied or cancelled by execuƟng fresh nominaƟon form.

12. The Company will not entertain any claims other than those of a registered nominee, unless so directed by a 
Court.

13. The inƟmaƟon regarding nominaƟon / nominaƟon form shall be filled in duplicate with the Registrars & 
Transfer Agents of the Company who will return one copy thereof to the members.

14. For shares held in dematerialised mode nominaƟon is required to be held with the Depository ParƟcipant in 
their prescribed form.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
TO 
THE MEMBERS OF M.K.EXIM (INDIA) LIMITED
Your Directors have pleasure in presenƟng their 29th Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2021

STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial results of the Company during the year under review are summarized as under:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

The highlights of the Company's performance are as under:

The income during the financial year ended 31st March 2021 is Rs. 5531.42 lakhs compared to Rs. 5070.29 lakhs, an 
increase of about 9%. The Company's new division of distributorship of cosmeƟcs (FMCG) products contributed a 
revenue Rs. 3400.71 lakhs during the year. The profit aŌer tax is Rs. 807.57lakhs for the year under report compared to 
Rs. 185.34 lakhs for the financial year ended 31st March 2020, an increase of about 336%. The sales by way of exports 
are Rs. 2063.55 lakhs during the year ended 31st March 2021 compared to Rs. 2883.45 lakhs in the previous year. 
Export sales consƟtute about37% of the total revenue during the year.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

The Company is engaged in business of export of fabrics and has started the Distributorship of CosmeƟcs (FMCG) 
products consisƟng of personal care and personal hygiene products of internaƟonally reputed brands, pan India in the 
year 2019. During the reporƟng period 2020-21 there is no change or addiƟon of in nature of business of the company. 
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION & TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

With a view to conserve the resources for the business of the Company, the Directors do not recommend dividend for 
the financial year ended 31st March 2021. Further due to uncertain condiƟons in global and domesƟc economy 
arising out of COVID-19 pandemic, the directors thought it prudenƟal to conserve the resources of the Company.

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the enƟre amount of profit for Financial Year 2020-21 in the statement of 
profit and loss and does not proposed any amount to carry to any specific reserve

SHARE CAPITAL:

The paid up equity share capital of the Company as at 31st March 2021 Rs. 897.05 lakhs. During the year under review, 
the Company has issued 17.90 lakhs equity shares on preferenƟal basis at a price of Rs. 20/-per share, as per SEBI 
RegulaƟons. During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differenƟal voƟng rights nor has it 
granted any stock opƟons or sweat equity. None of the directors of the Company hold instruments converƟble into 
equity shares during the financial year ended 31st March 2021.

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS:

The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
2013(hereinaŌer referred as "the Act" or "Act") and the Generally Accepted AccounƟng Principles (GAPP) as 
applicable in India. The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis in conformity with the Indian 
AccounƟng Standards (“Ind AS”). The esƟmates and judgments relaƟng to the financial statements are made on a 
prudent basis so as to reflect in a true and fair manner, the form and substance of transacƟons and reasonably present 
the Company's state of affairs, profits and cash flows for the financial year ended 31st March 2021.

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2021 was Rs. 687.46 lakh. The company conƟnues to focus on judicious 
management of its working capital, receivables, inventories and other working capital parameters under strict 
monitoring.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS:

(a) Share Capital
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is 10,00,00,000/- comprising of 1,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
each. The paid-up capital of the Company is Rs. 8,97,05,000/-.

(b) Loan funds
During the year the Secured Loan of the Company was decreased by 17.43%, i.e. from Rs. 343.28 Lakhs to Rs. 283.45 
Lakhs, the interest cost reduced during the year.

C ) Sales During the year the turnover of the Company has increased by 12%, i.e. from Rs. 4871.46 Lakhs to Rs. 5464.79 
Lakhs, the board is making their possible efforts to improve the performance of the company during the current 
financial year.

DEPOSITS:
During the financial year under review, the company did not accept any deposits covered under chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and SecƟon 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014. No amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the 
balance sheet.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:
There were no Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under SecƟon 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The detail 
of the investments made by company is given in the notes to the financial statements.
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MATERIAL CHANGE AND COMMITMENT
There have been no material changes and commitments affecƟng the financial posiƟon of the Company between the  
close of the year Ɵll the date of this report. There has been no change which affects the financial posiƟon of the 
Company.

As such there is no significant and material order by the regulator/court/tribunal/ impacƟng the going concern status 
and the Company operaƟon in future.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company's internal controls are commensurate with its size and the nature of its operaƟons. These have been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording and providing reliable financial and operaƟonal 
informaƟon, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, execuƟng transacƟons 
with proper authorizaƟon and ensuring compliance with corporate policies. The company has a well-defined 
delegaƟon of power with authority limits for approving contracts as well as expenditure. Processes for formulaƟng 
and reviewing annual and long term business plans have been laid down. 

M/s Rishabh Agrawal & Associates the statutory auditors of the company have audited the financial statements 
included in this annual report and have issued an aƩestaƟon report on our internal control over financial reporƟng (as 
defined in secƟon 143 of Companies Act 2013).

The internal audit is entrusted to M/s Madhur & Associates, Chartered Accountants. The Audit CommiƩee reviews the 
adequacy and effecƟveness of the internal control systems and suggests improvements, wherever required.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
SecƟon 135 of the Act and the rules made there under relaƟng to corporate social responsibility are not applicable to 
the Company during the financial year ended 31st March 2021.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 
I. The Company has commiƩed to conserve energy, improve energy efficiency through reducƟon of wastage and 

opƟmum uƟlisaƟon.
ii. Steps taken for uƟlizing alternate sources of energy: Nil
iii. Capital investment on energy conservaƟon: Nil

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
 The Company has no technology agreement and the issue of technology absorpƟon does not arise.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO:
 Foreign exchange earnings:  Rs.2057.48 lakhs
 Foreign Exchange out go: NIL

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
During the year under review, your Company enjoyed cordial relaƟonship with workers and employees at all levels.
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DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSON:

DIRECTORS
Mr. Manish Murlidhar Dialani, Managing Director of the company, reƟres by rotaƟon at the ensuing Annual 
General MeeƟng and being eligible, offers for reappointment.
Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed/reappointed, the nature of their experƟse in specific 
funcƟonal areas and the names of the companies in which they hold the directorship and Chairmanship / 
Membership of Board CommiƩees etc. are provided in the NoƟce to Members and report on Corporate 
Governance forming part of this Annual Report.
The Boards recommends to the members the resoluƟon for re-appointment of Mr. Manish Murlidhar Dialani as 
Managing Director of the company.
None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified as per provisions of SecƟon 164(2) of the Companies Act, 
2013. The Directors of the Company have made necessary disclosures as required under various provisions of the 
Companies Act.
The Company has received the necessary declaraƟon from each Independent Director in accordance with SecƟon 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with RegulaƟons of the LisƟng RegulaƟons that he/she meets the criteria 
of independence as laid out in SecƟon 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟons of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons.
There were no changes to the Key Managerial Personnel since last annual general meeƟng.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The key managerial personnel of the Company are given below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:
Our corporate governance report for FY 2020-21 forms part of this Annual Report. The requisite cerƟficate from the 
auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the condiƟons of corporate governance as sƟpulated under SEBI 
LODR is annexed to the corporate governance report.

BOARD EVALUATION
One of the key funcƟons of the Board is to monitor and review the Board evaluaƟon framework. The Board works with 
the nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee to lay down the evaluaƟon criteria for the performance of the 
Chairman, the Board, Board commiƩees, and execuƟve / non-execuƟve / independent directors through peer 
evaluaƟon, excluding the director being evaluated.

To improve the effecƟveness of the Board and its commiƩees, as well as that of each individual director, a formal Board 
review is internally undertaken on an annual basis. Further, the evaluaƟon process was based on the affirmaƟon 
received from the independent directors that they met the independence criteria as required under the Companies 
Act 2013, the LisƟng RegulaƟons The Board of directors expressed saƟsfacƟon of the evaluaƟon process adopted by 
the Company.
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MEETINGS
The board met 8 (Eight) Ɵmes during the financial year 2020-21.For details of meeƟngs of the Board, please refer to 
the Corporate Governance Report which is a part of this Annual Report.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟon obtained by them, your 
directors make the following statement in terms of secƟon 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act 2013:
(a) That in preparaƟon of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2021 the applicable accounƟng 

standards have been followed and that there were no material departures;
(b) the directors had selected such accounƟng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

© That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
prevenƟng and detecƟng fraud and other irregulariƟes;

(d) That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis
(e) that proper internal financial controls were laid down and that such internal financial controls were adequate 

and were operaƟng effecƟvely; and
(f) That the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operaƟng effecƟvely.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All transacƟons entered with related parƟes for the financial year ended 31st March 2021 were on arm's length basis 
and in the ordinary course of business under third proviso to secƟon 188(1) of the Act.

Omnibus approval, wherever required was given for transacƟons of repeƟƟve nature as per provisions. All related 
party transacƟons are placed before the Audit CommiƩee and the Board of Directors for approval. All related party 
transacƟons entered during the financial year ended 31st March 2021 are disclosed in the notes to accounts.

SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
During the year 2020-21 the Kolba Farm Fab Private Limited ceased to be subsidiary company in December, 2020 due 
to reducƟon of shareholding of the Company from 70.71% to 48.98% as a result of not subscribing the proposal of 
right issue offered by Kolba Farm Fab Private Limited and now Kolba Farm Fab Private Limited is associate company 
The salient features of the financial statement of the associate company are given in form AOC 1 in Annexure “B”.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
The consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the relevant accounƟng 
standards issue by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India and form an integral part of this report.

Pursuant to secƟon 129(3) of the Act and the relevant rules made thereunder, a statement containing salient features 
of the financial statement of the associate company is given in form AOC 1 and forms an integral part of this report as 
Annexure “B”.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME
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The details of the familiarizaƟon programme undertaken have been provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

CODE OF CONDUCT:
As provided under SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015, I hereby declare that all the Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel of the 
Company have affirmed Compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board and Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company during the financial year ended 31st March 2021.

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT/REMUNERATION/DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, /POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES 
ETC
Company has consƟtuted NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and adopted NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
Policy formulated in compliance with SecƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules thereunder and of the 
SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟons, 2015. The said policy is of the company on director's appointment and remuneraƟon, 
including the criteria for determining qualificaƟon, posiƟve aƩribute, independence of a directors and other maƩers 
as required under sub secƟon (3) of secƟon 178 of the companies act, 2013 is available on our website at 
hƩps://www.mkexim.com/policies.html.

AUDITORS

1. STATUTORY AUDITORS
The statutory auditors of the Company M/s Rishabh Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 018142C), 
were appointed as auditors of the Company in the AGM held on 28.09.2019 for the period of 5 years i.e. Ɵll the 32nd 
AGM to be held in the year 2024. 
The Auditors' Report for fiscal 2021 does not contain any qualificaƟon, reservaƟon or adverse remark. These reports 
are self-explanatory and does not require any comments thereon. The Report is enclosed with the financial 
statements in this Annual Report

BRANCH AUDITOR
The Company is having a branch office at Mumbai, Maharashtra and the company has appointed  M/s M S Joshi & 
Company, Chartered Accountant (FRN: 138082W) as branch auditor in its AGM dated 30.09.2020 for the period of 5 
years i.e. Ɵll the 33rd AGM to be held in the year 2025.

2. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 204 of the Act and The Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s Anshu Parikh & 
associates prop. Anshu Parikh, PracƟcing Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021.

The Secretarial Auditors' Report for fiscal 2021 does not contain any qualificaƟon, reservaƟon or adverse remark. 
These reports are self-explanatory and does not require any comments thereon. The Secretarial Auditors' Report is 
enclosed as Annexure “D” to the Board's report

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS
During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the audit 
commiƩee, under SecƟon 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud commiƩed against the 
Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be menƟoned in the Board's report.
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COST AUDIT
The company is not required to maintain cost record as specified by the Central Government under secƟon 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The provisions of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 are not applicable to 
the Company's operaƟons.

CERTIFICATE OF NON DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
A cerƟficate from Anshu Parikh & associates, prop. Anshu Parikh, (Membership No. 9785, CP No. 10686), pracƟcing 
Company Secretary to the effect that none of the Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or conƟnuing as Directors of the Company by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
statutory authority is aƩached at the end of this report.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
In accordance with secƟon 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in the prescribed
format is available on our website www.mkexim.com

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT
Your Company has an elaborate Risk Management Framework, which is designed to enable risks to be idenƟfied, 
assessed and miƟgated appropriately. On the basis of risk assessment criteria of the Company has been entrusted 
with the responsibility to assist the Board in
(a) Overseeing and approving the Company's enterprise wide risk management framework; and
(b) Overseeing that all the risks that the organizaƟon faces such as financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, 

property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputaƟonal and other risks have been idenƟfied and assessed and there is an 
adequate risk management infrastructure in place, capable of addressing those risks.

The Audit CommiƩee of the Board evaluaƟng risks management policy of the Company on quarterly basis. A risk 
management policy is available on our website .com hƩp://www.mkexim

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as sƟpulated under the SecuriƟes and 
Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (“LisƟng RegulaƟons”) is 
presented in a separate secƟon forming part of the Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Disclosures pertaining to remuneraƟon and other details as required under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
ParƟculars of employees remuneraƟon, as required under secƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, forms a part 
of this report. Considering first proviso to SecƟon 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report, excluding the 
said informaƟon, was sent to the members of the Company and others enƟtled thereto. The said informaƟon is 
available for inspecƟon at the registered office of the Company during working hours up to the date of ensuing annual 
general meeƟng. Any member interested in obtaining such informaƟon may write to the Company Secretary in this 
regard.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY & PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASMENT
The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for work to all employees that is free from discriminaƟon 
of any kind. It has provided equal opportuniƟes of employment to all without regard to the naƟonality, religion, caste, 
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colour, language, marital status and sex.
Pursuant to the disclosure requirements under secƟon 134(3) and rules thereof of the Companies Act, 2013 the 
Company has also consƟtuted internal complaint commiƩee as required under provisions of Sexual Harassment of 
woman at workplace (prevenƟon, ProhibiƟon & Redressal) Act 2013. 
The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Currently, the board has Three CommiƩees: the Audit CommiƩee, the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and 
the Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee. The majority of the members of these commiƩees are Independent and 
non-execuƟves.
A detailed note on the composiƟon of the board and other commiƩees is provided in the corporate governance report 
secƟon of this annual report.

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to the RegulaƟon 17(8) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Chief ExecuƟve Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) cerƟficaƟon is aƩached with the Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS AND INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The Board of Directors affirms that during the Financial Year 2020-21, the Company has complied with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards issued by the InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central 
Government under SecƟon 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the preparaƟon of the Financial Statements, the 
Company has also applied the Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) specified under SecƟon 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015.

LISTING FEES
The Equity shares of the Company are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE), which has naƟonwide trading 
terminals. The annual lisƟng fee for the year 2021-22 was paid within the scheduled Ɵme to BSE.

ENVIRONMENTS AND SAFETY
The Company's operaƟons do not pose any environment hazards and are conducted in such a manner that safety of all 
concerned and compliances with environmental regulaƟons are ensured.

TRANSFER OF SHARES
As noƟfied under RegulaƟon 40(1) of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, 
except in case of transmission or transposiƟon of securiƟes, requests for effecƟng transfer of securiƟes shall not be 
processed unless the securiƟes are held in the dematerialized form with a depository.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board of Directors would like to express their sincere appreciaƟon for the assistance and co-operaƟon received 
from the financial insƟtuƟons, banks, Government authoriƟes, customers, vendors and members during the year 
under review. The Boards of Directors also wish to place on record its deep sense of appreciaƟon for the commiƩed 
services by the Company's execuƟves, staff and workers.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Murli Wadhumal Dialani
Chairman

DIN: 08267828

Place: Jaipur
Dated: 26.08.2021
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Annexure A to Boards Report
FORM NO MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended 31  March 2021st

(Pursuant to secƟon 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
 Companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Rules 2014)

I  RegistraƟon & Other Details
1 CIN : L63040RJ1992PLC007111      
2 RegistraƟon Date  : 31.12.1992    
3 Name of the Company  : M.K.EXIM (INDIA) LIMITED   
4 Category/sub category  : Non government company limited by shares  
5 Address of the registered office  :  G1/150, Garment Zone, EPIP, Sitapura, 
           Tonk Road, Jaipur-302022 Rajasthan
                                                                         Phone:   +91 141 3937500
           Email: mkexim@hotmail.com
  6 Whether listed Company : Yes  
  7 Name and address of the RTA : Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd.  
           Beetal House, 3  Floor, 99, Madangir,rd

           Behind Local Shopping Center,   
         Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir,
         New Delhi – 110 062
         Tel: (011) 2996 1281/82
         Fax: (011) 2996 1284
         Email: beetalrta@gmail.com

     

II   Principal business acƟviƟes of the Company
(All the business acƟviƟes contribuƟng 10% or more of the turnover of the Company shall be stated)

III  ParƟculars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies:       As per AOC-1

For M.K.Exim (India) Limited

Murli Wadhumal Dialani
Chairman

DIN: 08267828
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ANNEXURES “ B” TO DIRECTORS' REPORT
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to ϐirst proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the ϐinancial statement of subsidiaries/
associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Notes: 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. NIL

For M.K.Exim (India) Limited

Murli Wadhumal Dialani
Chairman

DIN: 08267828

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to SecƟon 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to 
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold 
     during the year. NIL
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ANNEXURES “ C” TO DIRECTORS' REPORT
M. K. EXIM (INDIA) LIMITED

(CIN: L63040RJ1992PLC007111)

(A)The raƟo of the remuneraƟon of each director to the median employee's remuneraƟon and other details in terms of 197(12) of 
the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial personnel) Rules 2014.

 There were no employees who were In receipt of the remuneraƟon which in the aggregate was not less than Rs. 1,02,00,000 per 
annum or in part of year who were in receipt of remuneraƟon  which in aggregate was not less than Rs. 8,50,000 p.m.  Hence no 
details are shown as required under secƟon 197(12) of the Act and the relevant rules made thereunder.

For M.K.Exim (India) Limited

Murli Wadhumal Dialani
Chairman

DIN: 08267828
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ANNEXURE “D”TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

ANSHU PARIKH & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Flat no-202, Alokik Orchid.
D-159A, Savitri Path, Bapu Nagar, Jaipur

Mob: +91-9887658618.
E-mail: parikhanshu26@gmail.com

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021
[Pursuant to secƟon 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,  
The Members,
M.K. Exim (India) Limited
CIN: L63040RJ1992PLC007111 
Registered Office: G1/150, Garment Zone, E.P.I.P,
 Sitapura, Tonk Road, Jaipur-302022.

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate pracƟces by M.K. Exim (India) Limited (hereinaŌer called the company) for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2021. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided a reasonable basis for evaluaƟng the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verificaƟon of the M.K Exim (India) Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company and also the informaƟon provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representaƟves during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31/03/2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporƟng made hereinaŌer

I have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company as made available to me and also the informaƟon provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorised representaƟves during the conduct of Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the rules made there under; 
(ii) The SecuriƟes Contracts (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under: (Not applicable as no such 

events occurred during the financial year under review)
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟons and Bye-laws framed there under;
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟons made there under to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: (Not applicable as no such 
events occurred during the financial year under review)

(v)  The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992  
('SEBI Act'):- 
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(a) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares and Takeovers) RegulaƟons, 
2011: 

(b) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board Of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015;
(C) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 

2018;
(d) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) RegulaƟons, 2014: : Not 

applicable for the period under review.
(e) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2008: Not 

applicable for the period under review.
(f) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) RegulaƟons, 

1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client: Not applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar 
to Issue and Share Transfer agent during the financial year under review.

(g) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2009: Not applicable for 
the period under review; and

(h) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 1998: Not applicable for the 
period under review.

(I)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons & Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The InsƟtute of 
Company Secretaries of India.
During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, RegulaƟons, 
Guidelines and Standards menƟoned above to the extent applicable and subject to any relaxaƟon/extensions granted.
I further report that, the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax laws 
and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts have not been reviewed in this audit since the same have 
been subject to review by the statutory financial auditors, tax auditors, and other designated professionals.
I further report that: The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted with proper balance of ExecuƟve 
Directors, Non-ExecuƟve Directors and Independent Directors including Woman Directors. The changes in the 
composiƟon of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate noƟce is given to all directors to schedule the Board MeeƟngs. Except where consent of the directors was 
received for scheduling meeƟng at a shorter noƟce, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informaƟon and clarificaƟons on the agenda 
items before the meeƟng and for meaningful parƟcipaƟon at the meeƟng
All the decisions of the Board and CommiƩees thereof were carried out with requisite majority.
I further report that, based on the Compliance mechanism processes as explained by the Company, I am of opinion 
that there are adequate system and processes in place in the company commensurate with the size and its operaƟons 
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons and guidelines.

  
Date: 09.08.2021

Place: Jaipur 
UDIN: F009785C000757928

        

Note: This report is to be read with our leƩer of even date which is annexed as Annexure and an integral part of this report. 

For Anshu Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries
Anshu Parikh
Proprietor
FCS:9785
CP no: 10686
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Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report
To,
The Members,
M.K. Exim (India) Limited
CIN: L63040RJ1992PLC007111
Registered Office: G1/150, Garment Zone, E.P.I.P,
 Sitapura, Tonk Road, Jaipur-302022

1. The compliance of the provisions of all laws, rules, regulaƟons, standards applicable to the M. K. Exim (India) 
Limited (the 'Company') is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examinaƟon was limited 
to the verificaƟon of records and procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial 
Audit Report.

2. Maintenance of secretarial and other records of applicable laws is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. Our responsibility is to issue Secretarial Audit Report, based on the audit of the relevant records 
maintained and furnished to us by the company, along with explanaƟons where so required.

3. I have followed the audit pracƟces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial and other legal records, legal compliance mechanism and 
corporate conduct. The verificaƟon was done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts as reflected in 
secretarial and other records produced to us. We believe that the processes and pracƟces, we followed, 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

4. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 
company.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representaƟon about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulaƟons and major events during the audit period.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy 
or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Anshu Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Anshu Parikh
Proprietor
FCS:9785
CP no: 10686
Date: 09.08.2021 
Place: Jaipur
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER REGULATION 17(8) OF

SEBI (LODR) REGULATION 2015

The Board of Directors
M/s. M.K.Exim (India) Limited

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of M.K.Exim (India) Limited for the financial 
year 2020-21 and cerƟfy that:
a) These statements to the best of our knowledge and belief:
I.  Do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material facts or contain statements that might be 

misleading:
II. Present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with exisƟng accounƟng standards, 

applicable laws and regulaƟons.
b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transacƟons entered into by the Directors, Senior 

Management Personnel and the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violaƟve of the 
Company's Code of Conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporƟng and have 
evaluated the effecƟveness of the internal control systems of the Company for such reporƟng. We have disclosed to 
the Auditors and the Audit CommiƩee, deficiencies, if any, in the design or operaƟon of such internal controls, of 
which we are aware of and the steps taken and/or proposed to be taken to recƟfy these deficiencies.

d) We have also indicated to the Auditors and the Audit CommiƩee.
 (i) Significant changes in Internal Controls with respect to financial reporƟng during the year.
 (ii) Significant changes in accounƟng policies during the Year and these have been disclosed in the notes to the   

financial statements.
e) To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no instances of significant fraud involving either the management 

or employees having a significant role in the Company's internal control systems with respect to financial reporƟng.

Manish Murlidhar Dialani     
(Managing Director)  
Place: Jaipur
Date: 30.06.2021

Mahaveer Prasad Jain
(Chief Financial Officer)      
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ANSHU PARIKH & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Flat no-202, Alokik Orchid.
D-159A, Savitri Path, Bapu Nagar, Jaipur

Mob: +91-9887658618.
E-mail:parikhanshu26@gmail.com

CerƟficate of Non-DisqualificaƟon of Directors
(Pursuant to RegulaƟon 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of SEBI 

(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015)

To,  
The Members,
M.K. Exim (India) Limited
G1/150, Garment Zone, E.P.I.P,
Sitapura, Tonk Road, Jaipur-302022

I have examined the relevant disclosures provided by the Directors of M.K. Exim (India) Limited having CIN 
L63040RJ1992PLC007111 and having registered office at G1/150, Garment Zone, E.P.I.P, Sitapura, Tonk Road, Jaipur-
302022, (hereinaŌer referred to as 'the Company') for the purpose of issuing this CerƟficate, in accordance with 
RegulaƟon 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C clause 10(i) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015. 
In my opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the verificaƟons (including Directors IdenƟficaƟon 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and based on the disclosures of the 
Directors, I hereby cerƟfy that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for financials year 
ending on 31  March, 2021, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or conƟnuing as Directors of the st

companies by the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 
Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / conƟnuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verificaƟon. This 
cerƟficate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effecƟveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company

For Anshu Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Anshu Parikh
Proprietor       
FCS:9785        

       CP no: 10686

Date: 12.08.2021
Place: Jaipur

 UDIN: F009785C000775099
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
[Pursuant to Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 

RegulaƟons, 2015 “LisƟng RegulaƟons”]
 

The detailed report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, as per regulaƟon 34(3) 
read with Schedule V of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 is set out below:

Company's philosophy on Code of Governance

The Company has a strong legacy of following fair, transparent and ethical governance pracƟces and is commiƩed to 
maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and strictly adheres to the Corporate Governance 
requirements set out by SEBI. The Company's Corporate Governance policy is based on the belief that good 
governance is an essenƟal element of business, which helps the Company to fulfil its responsibiliƟes towards all its 
stakeholders. The report on Corporate Governance as sƟpulated under the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015(“SEBI RegulaƟons”) forms an integral part of this Report. The requisite CerƟficate 
on Corporate Governance obtained from Ms. Anshu Parikh, PracƟcing Company Secretary for compliance with SEBI 
RegulaƟons is aƩached to the report on Corporate Governance. A CerƟficate of the Chief ExecuƟve Officer (CEO) and 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company in terms of RegulaƟon17(8) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons is also annexed.

Board of Directors:

The Board of Director comprises of member from diversified fields and having varied skills, vast experience and 
knowledge. The Board consists of six members including three ExecuƟve Directors and three Non-ExecuƟve 
Independent Directors. ComposiƟon of the Board of your Company is in conformity with RegulaƟon 17 of SEBI (LODR) 
RegulaƟon 2015.
The Board being aware of its fiduciary responsibility recognizes its responsibiliƟes towards all stakeholder to uphold 
highest standard in all maƩer concerning the Company. It has empowered responsible person to implement its board 
policies, guidelines and has set up adequate review process. The Board provides strategic guidance on the affair of the 
Company. The Independent Director provides independent and objecƟve judgment on maƩers placed before them.

Board ComposiƟon & Categories.

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of an opƟmum combinaƟon of execuƟve and non-execuƟve directors. 
The Board of Directors comprises six Directors out of which three Directors are Non-ExecuƟve Directors as on 
31.03.2021. The Company has an ExecuƟve Chairman and not less than half of the total strength of the Board 
comprises of Independent Directors. None of the Directors on the Company's Board is a member of more than 10 
CommiƩees and Chairman of more than 5 CommiƩees across all the Companies in which he is a Director as on 
31.03.2021. All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding commiƩee posiƟons occupied by them in 
other Companies.

As on March 31, 2021, the Board comprised of six Directors, designated as follows:
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During the F.Y 2020-21, there is no change in composiƟon of board of directors of the company.

Further, the Independent Directors possesses integrity, experƟse and experience which will bring tremendous value 
to the Board and to the Company. The Independent Directors will get registered (those who have not registered) with 
the independent directors data bank and will comply with all the requirements, in the extended Ɵme period 
prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

There is no pecuniary relaƟonship or transacƟon of the non-execuƟve directors with the Company.

During the year, 8 (Eight) Board MeeƟngs were held on 25.06.2020, 31.07.2020, 26.08.2020, 15.09.2020, 10.11.2020, 
01.01.2021, 13.02.2021 and 22.03.2021. The intervening gap between the meeƟngs was within the period 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the LisƟng RegulaƟons.

The requisite informaƟon as enumerated as per the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟon and Disclosure Requirement) RegulaƟon 
2015 is made available to the Board of Directors for discussion and consideraƟon at Board MeeƟngs. The composiƟon 
of the Board, aƩendance at Board MeeƟngs (BM) held during the financial year (FY) under review and at last Annual 
General MeeƟng (AGM) and number of directorships and Memberships/ Chairmanships in other Public Companies 
are given below:

*Excludes directorships held in Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies incorporated under SecƟon 8 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

RelaƟonships between directors 
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In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company, one-third 
Directors of the Company, liable to reƟre by rotaƟon reƟres at every Annual General MeeƟng. In the ensuing Annual 
General MeeƟng Mr. Manish Murlidhar Dialani (Managing Director) is liable to reƟre by rotaƟon. InformaƟon as 
required under SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟon 2015 on director's appointed/reappointed at this Annual General MeeƟng is 
annexed to the NoƟce of the Annual General MeeƟng.

Performance evaluaƟon of Board & Directors:

The Board is responsible for undertaking a formal annual evaluaƟon of its own performance, that of its CommiƩees 
and of individual Directors as per SecƟon 134 of Companies Act, 2013 and regulaƟon 19 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons 
and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 with a view to review their funcƟoning and effecƟveness and also 
for idenƟfying possible paths for improvement. During the year, the Board in concurrence with NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee carried out a performance evaluaƟon of itself, its CommiƩees, and each of the execuƟve/ 
non-execuƟve/ independent directors through quesƟonnaire.

The Independent directors were evaluated on various performance indicators including aspects relaƟng to:

• Integrity and maintenance of confidenƟality.

• Commitment and parƟcipaƟon at the Board & CommiƩee

• EffecƟve deployment of knowledge and experƟse

• Exercise of objecƟve independent judgement in the best interest of Company

• Interpersonal relaƟonships with other directors and management

The board and commiƩee were evaluated on the following arameters:
• Size, structure and experƟse of the Board.

• Review of strategies, risk assessment, robust policies and procedures by Board.
• Oversight of the financial reporƟng process & monitoring company's internal control system. Quality of agenda, 

conduct of meeƟng, procedures and process followed for effecƟve discharge of funcƟons.
• EffecƟve discharge of funcƟons and duƟes by CommiƩee as per terms of reference. Appropriateness and 

Ɵmeliness of the updates given on regulatory developments.
• Board's engagement with Senior Management team.
• The Chairperson had an individual discussion with each director based on the peer analysis.

Details of FamiliarisaƟon programme to Independent Directors:
Pursuant to the Code of Conduct for Independent Directors specified under the Act and the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, 
the Company has in place a familiarizaƟon programme for all its Independent Directors. Such familiarizaƟon 
programmes help the Independent Directors to understand the Company's strategy, business model, operaƟons, 
markets, organizaƟon structure, risk management etc. and such other areas as may arise from Ɵme to Ɵme. The 
FamiliarizaƟon Programmes imparted to Independent Directors of the Company has been disclosed on its website 
and a weblink thereto is: policy for familiarizaƟon programme (mkex  .im.com)

Matrix of Core Skills/ ExperƟse/ Competencies of Directors in context of business of the Company
The Matrix seƫng out the skills, experƟse and competencies of Directors as on 31st March 2021, in context of 
business of the Company is as under:



Annual Report - 20 -20220 1

000034

Independence of Independent Directors
The Company has received the necessary declaraƟon from each Independent Director in accordance with SecƟon 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with RegulaƟons of the LisƟng RegulaƟons that he/she meets the criteria of 
independence as laid out in SecƟon 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟons of the LisƟng RegulaƟons.
The Board of directors expressed saƟsfacƟon that independent directors fulfil the condiƟons specified in SEBI (LODR), 
2015 regulaƟons and are independent of the management.
ComposiƟon of Board CommiƩee
The Board has consƟtuted various CommiƩees to support the Board in discharging its responsibiliƟes. There are 
Three CommiƩees consƟtuted by the Board
• Audit CommiƩee
• Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee
• NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee
The Company's guidelines relaƟng to Board meeƟngs are applicable to CommiƩee meeƟngs as far as pracƟcable.
Each CommiƩee has the authority to engage outside experts, advisors and counsels to the extent it considers 
appropriate to assist in its funcƟons. Senior officers/ funcƟonal heads of Company are invited to present various 
details called for by the CommiƩee in its meeƟng. Minutes of proceedings of CommiƩee meeƟngs are circulated to 
the Directors and placed before Board meeƟngs for noƟng. The recommendaƟons of the CommiƩees are submiƩed 
to the Board for approval.
Audit CommiƩee 
Terms of Reference:
(i) Brief descripƟon of terms of reference:
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The powers, role and terms of reference of the audit CommiƩee are in line with the provisions of SecƟon 177 of the 
Companies Act 2013, and regulaƟon 18 of SEBI (LODR) 2015.

The primary objecƟve of the CommiƩee is to monitor and provide an effecƟve supervision of the Management's 
financial reporƟng process, to ensure accurate and Ɵmely disclosures with the highest levels of transparency, 
integrity and quality of financial reporƟng. The CommiƩee oversees the work carried out in the financial reporƟng 
process by the Management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors and notes the processes and 
safeguards employed by each of them.

The CommiƩee also reviews the funcƟoning of whistle blower & Vigil mechanism, adequacy and effecƟveness of 
internal audit funcƟon, risk management and control systems and results of operaƟon.

Business Risk EvaluaƟon and Management

The overview of the risk management policy is also done by the Audit CommiƩee.

Business Risk EvaluaƟon and Management is an ongoing process within the OrganizaƟon. The Company has a robust 
risk management framework to idenƟfy, monitor and minimize risks as also idenƟfy business opportuniƟes.

The objecƟves and scope of the Audit CommiƩee regarding the Risk Management broadly comprise of;

1. Oversight of risk management performed by the execuƟve management;

2. Reviewing the BRM policy and framework in line with local legal requirements and SEBI guidelines;

3. Reviewing risks and evaluate treatment including iniƟaƟng miƟgaƟon acƟons and ownership as per a pre-
defined cycle;

4. Defining framework for idenƟficaƟon, assessment, monitoring, and miƟgaƟon and reporƟng of risks.

5. Within its overall scope as aforesaid, the CommiƩee shall review risks trends, exposure, and potenƟal impact 
analysis and miƟgaƟon plan.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors and 
employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour. No person has been denied access to the Chairman of the 
Audit CommiƩee. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for prevenƟon of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 
securiƟes by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in 
the Company's shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company's shares by the Directors and the designated 
employees while in possession of unpublished price sensiƟve informaƟon in relaƟon to the Company and during the 
period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementaƟon of the Code. All Board 
Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code. The Companies Code of Conduct 
is available on companies Website.

•MeeƟng, ComposiƟon, designaƟon, Category and AƩendance thereof:

During the year under report, the commiƩee met 7 Ɵmes on 25.06.2020, 31.07.2020, 26.08.2020, 15.09.2020, 
10.11.2020, 13.02.2021 and 22.03.2021. All the members were present in all the meeƟngs. The recommendaƟons 
made by the Audit commiƩee during the year were accepted by the Board

The aƩendance and ComposiƟon of meeƟngs is as under:
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NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee:

(i)Brief descripƟon of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee are in line with the provisions of secƟon 178 of 
the Companies Act and RegulaƟon 19 SEBI (LODR) 2015.

The purpose of the CommiƩee is to oversee the nominaƟon process for top-level management posiƟons and review 
execuƟve remuneraƟon structure. The CommiƩee idenƟfies, screens and reviews individuals qualified to serve as 
execuƟve directors, non-execuƟve directors and independent directors consistent with criteria approved by the 
Board and recommends, for approval by the Board, nominees for elecƟon at the AGM.

•MeeƟng, ComposiƟon, designaƟon, Category and AƩendance thereof:

During the year under report, the commiƩee met on 26.08.2020. The ComposiƟon and other details of NominaƟon 
and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee of the Company are as follows

The CommiƩee comprises of three independent Directors:

•Details of RemuneraƟon paid to Directors: 
Payment to Non-ExecuƟve Directors. 

Pecuniary relaƟons or transacƟons of the Non-ExecuƟve Directors

There were no pecuniary relaƟonship or transacƟons of non-execuƟve directors vis- a-vis the Company.

RemuneraƟon of directors: 
Details of RemuneraƟon paid to the Directors for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021.     (Rs. in Lakhs)

•   During the year company had not paid any remuneraƟon to execuƟve director for 15 days for the month of April, 
2020
I. No commission is payable to the ExecuƟve Directors.
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ii. No siƫng fee is paid to ExecuƟve Directors for aƩending the meeƟng of Board of Directors of the Company or 
commiƩees thereof.

Criteria of making payments to Non-ExecuƟve/ Independent Director(s)

The Non-ExecuƟve Directors shall be enƟtled to receive remuneraƟon by way of siƫng fees, reimbursement of 
expenses for parƟcipaƟon in the Board meeƟngs.

A Non-ExecuƟve Director shall be enƟtled to receive siƫng fees for each meeƟng of the Board aƩended by him, of 
such sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors within the over all limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013 and The Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the same is as 
:www.mkwxim.com/policies.html

Performance evaluaƟon criteria for independent directors 

The performance evaluaƟon of the independent directors was completed. The performance evaluaƟon of the 
Chairman and non-independent directors was carried out by the independent directors and was accepted by the 
Board. The Board of directors expressed saƟsfacƟon of the evaluaƟon process adopted by the Company

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct ('the Code') applicable to the Directors and employees. 
The Code is applicable to Non-ExecuƟve Directors including Independent Directors to such extent as may be 
applicable to them depending on their roles and responsibiliƟes. The Code gives guidance and support needed for 
ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. The Code reflects the values of the Company viz. Customer Value, 
Ownership Mind-set, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence.

A copy of the Code has been put up on the Company's website and can be accessed at hƩp :// www.mkexim.com.The 
code has been circulated to directors and Management And Management Personal, and its compliance is affirmed by 
them annually. 

A declaraƟon signed by the Company's Chairman is published in this Report.

COMPLIANCE

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meeƟng(s), is responsible 
for and is required to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulaƟons, including the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with rules issued thereunder, as applicable and Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the 
InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India.

MD & CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to the RegulaƟon 17(8) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, The annual cerƟficate given by the Managing Director and 
the Chief Financial Officer is published in this Report.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has not issue employee Stock OpƟon during F.Y 2020-21.

Stakeholder RelaƟonship CommiƩee:
(i) Brief descripƟon of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee are in line with the provisions of secƟon 178 of 
the Companies Act 2013 and RegulaƟon 20 SEBI (LODR) 2015.

The Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee is primarily responsible for redressal of shareholders' / investors' / security 
holders' grievances including complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of declared dividends, annual 
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reports etc. The CommiƩee's terms of reference also include allotment of equity shares to opƟon grantees under the 
prevailing ESOP Scheme of the Company.

•   MeeƟng, ComposiƟon, DesignaƟon, Category and AƩendance thereof:

During the year under report, the commiƩee met on 21.12.2020 and 01.01.2021.  All the members were present in all 
the meeƟngs. The recommendaƟons made by the Stakeholders' relaƟonship commiƩee during the year were 
accepted by the Board. 

 The aƩendance and ComposiƟon of meeƟngs is as under:

The shares of the Company are being compulsorily traded in dematerialized form. Shares in physical form, received 
for transfer/dematerializaƟon, were transferred/dematerialized within a period of 21 days from the date of 
lodgement of valid Share Transfer deed along with share cerƟficate. These requests are processed through the 
Company's Registrar and share transfer Agent i.e. M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd.

The Company has taken various steps to ensure that the shareholders- related maƩers are given due priority and the 
maƩers/issues raised are resolved at the earliest. During the year 2020-21 - No Complaint was received.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER 

Ms. PrakriƟ Sethi, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company

General Body MeeƟngs

I.Details of the locaƟon and Ɵme of the last three AGM's(Annual General meeƟng) held:
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Disclosures

• The Company has complied with the requirements of the stock exchange or SEBI on maƩers related to Capital 
Market as applicable.

• The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟon 2015.

• No Extra-ordinary General MeeƟng took place during the financial year 2020-21

POSTAL BALLOT

(i) The Company has issued Postal Ballot NoƟce dated 10.11.2020 pursuant to the provisions of secƟon 110 and  
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 22 of the Companies 
(Management And AdministraƟon ) Rule 2014 including any statutory modificaƟon or re-enactment thereof, for 
the Ɵme being in force), SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons 2015(SEBI”LODR”) 
and other applicable laws and regulaƟons, guide lines framed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) for 
conducƟng general meeƟngs/postal ballot through e-voƟng as per Circular No, 33/2020 dated 28th September 
2020 and other circulars referred to therein, to seek the consent of the members of M.K Exim (India) 
Limited(“the Company”) for the special resoluƟon, through postal ballot using remote electronic voƟng (“E 
–voƟng”) for following:

 “To Issue and allotment of equity shares, by way of preferenƟal issue, to idenƟfied persons, who are non 
promoters nor forming part of promoters group”

(ii) VoƟng rights reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the Members on Friday,  
November 13, 2020 (the Cut-off date).

(iii) Facility for voƟng through Postal Ballot and electronic means was available during the following period-  

 - Commencement of voƟng from Friday, November 20, 2020 at 9.00 A.M. (IST); and 

 I- ended on Saturday, December 19, 2020 at 5.00 P.M. ( ST) (both days inclusive).

(iv) The Company had appointed M/s Anshu Parikh & associates prop. Anshu Parikh, Company Secretary in pracƟce,  
as ScruƟnizer for remote e-voƟng process in a fair and transparent manner.

(v) The Results of the Postal Ballot was declared on December 21, 2020 and resoluƟons were passed by requisite 
majority, deemed to be passed on the 19th December, 2020 i.e. last date specified by the Company for remote e-
voƟng.

(vi) Consolidated summary of results of Postal Ballot is as under:

Item No. 1 - To Issue and allotment of equity shares, by way of preferenƟal issue, to idenƟfied persons, who are non  
promoters nor forming part of promoters group:

Type of resoluƟon: Special ResoluƟon
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Means of CommunicaƟon

The Company publishes its quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results in leading naƟonal newspapers such as 
Financial Express in English language and Business Remedies in Hindi. These results are displayed on the website of 
the Company along with other news releases and presentaƟons, if any. All other vital informaƟon is also placed on the 
website of the Company. The results are not sent individually to shareholders. All price sensiƟve informaƟon and 
maƩers that are material to shareholders are disclosed to the respecƟve Stock Exchanges where the securiƟes of the 
Company are listed. The Quarterly Results, Shareholding PaƩern and all other corporate communicaƟon to the Stock 
Exchanges are filed through BSE LisƟng Centre, for disseminaƟon on their respecƟve website. The stock exchange 
filings are also made available on the website of the Company at www.mkexim.com

To facilitate prompt correspondence with investors/shareholders relaƟng to their queries and grievances, the 
Company has a dedicated email-id viz, complianceofficer@mkexim.com.

General Shareholder InformaƟon

Stock Market Price Data: Monthly High-Low values (in Rs.) at BSE:

*Source: Websites of Stock Exchanges, BSE

Registrar and Transfer Agent 
M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd
Beetal House,  3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Center, Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi – 110 
062 Tel: (011) 29961281/82 Email:beetalrta@gmail.com

Share Transfer System 
SEBI had mandated that, effecƟve from 1st April 2019, securiƟes of listed companies can only be transferred in 
dematerialized form except where the claim is lodged for transmission or transposiƟon of shares or where the transfer 
deed(s) was/were lodged prior to 1st April 2019 and returned due to deficiency in the documents. Shares received in 
physical form for transfer are aƩended and transferred within the sƟpulated period from the date of lodgement 
subject to documents being valid and complete in all the respects. During the year, the Company had obtained, on 
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half-yearly basis, a cerƟficate, from a Company Secretary in pracƟce, as required under RegulaƟon 40(9) of SEBI 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirement) RegulaƟons, 2015 and filed copy of the same with the Stock 
Exchanges. Further, the Company is complied with the OperaƟonal guidelines issued by the SEBI for Transfer and 
DematerializaƟon of re-lodged physical shares.

DistribuƟon of shareholding as on 31st March, 2021:

DematerializaƟon of Shares and liquidity.
85,46,375 equity shares were dematerialized Ɵll 31st March, 2021 which was 95.27% of the total paid-up Equity Share 
Capital of the Company on that date. The Company has sent communicaƟon to the shareholders encouraging them to 
dematerialize their physical holding in the Company. During the year, requests for dematerializaƟon of shares are 
processed and confirmaƟon thereof is given to the respecƟve depositories i.e. NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services India Limited (CDSL) within the statutory Ɵme limit from the date of receipt of 
share cerƟficates and related documents. Trading in equity shares of the Company is permiƩed only in dematerialized 
form. The demat ISIN of the Company's equity shares is INE227F01010.
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Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any converƟble instruments
There were no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any other ConverƟble Instruments as on 31.03.2021.

Address for Plant and Correspondence
M.K.EXIM (INDIA) LIMITED, 
G-1/150, Garment Zone, E.P.I.P., Sitapura, Tonk Road, Jaipur-3020  (Rajasthan)22
PH: 0141-3937501, FAX: 0141-3937502
E-mail: mkexim@mkexim.com,  : www.mkexim.comcomplianceofficer@mkexim.com,  Web-Site
Other Disclosures: 
The company has complied with all mandatory requirements

policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries is available at  www.mkexim.com/policies.html  

policy on dealing with related party transacƟons is available at  www.mkexim.com/policies.html  

PreferenƟal allotment: The fund raised from preferenƟal allotment has been fully uƟlized for business purpose.

A cerƟficate from M/s. Anshu Parikh & Associates, PracƟsing Company Secretaries has been received staƟng / 
confirming that none of the Directors on the Board has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
conƟnuing as Directors of the Company by SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority and is 
aƩached as a part of this report.

Total fees for all services paid by the Company during F.Y 2020-21 to the Statutory Auditor of the Company viz. M/s 
Rishabh Agarwal & Associates was Rs. 1.65 lakhs 

AffirmaƟon regarding Compliance with the Code of Conduct
As provided under SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015, I hereby declare that all the Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel of the 
Company have affirmed Compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board and Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company during the financial year ended 31st March 2021.

For M.K.Exim (India) Limited

Murli Wadhumal Dialani
Chairman

DIN: 08267828
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To 

The Members, 

M.K. Exim (India) Limited

G1/150, Garment Zone, E.P.I.P,

Sitapura, Tonk Road, Jaipur-302022

We have examined the compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance by M.K. Exim (India) Limited (“the 

Company”) for the year ended on 31st March 2021, as sƟpulated in RegulaƟons 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-

regulaƟon (2) of RegulaƟon 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 

Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015. 

The compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examinaƟon 

was limited to procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 

condiƟons of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements 

of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, and representaƟons 

made by the management, except as reported in Secretarial Audit report, we cerƟfy that to the extent applicable the 

Company has complied with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance as sƟpulated in RegulaƟons 17 to 27, clauses (b) 

to (i) of sub-regulaƟon (2) of RegulaƟon 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of LisƟng RegulaƟons. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficiency or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ANSHU PARIKH & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Flat no-202, Alokik Orchid.
D-159A, Savitri Path, Bapu Nagar, Jaipur

Mob: +91-9887658618.
E-mail: parikhanshu26@gmail.com

For Anshu Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Anshu Parikh
Proprietor       
FCS:9785       
C.P: 10686       

Date: 12.08.2021
Place: Jaipur
UDIN: F009785C000775165 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In March 2020, the World Health OrganisaƟon (WHO) declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. Consequent to this, Government of 
India declared naƟon-wide lockdown on March 24, 2020, which has impacted normal business operaƟons of the Company. 
Indian economy, which was firmly on the path of recovery in the second half of FY 2020-21, was hit by a rather unexpectedly 
virulent second wave of COVID-19 

The Company has assessed the impact of this pandemic on its business operaƟons and has considered all relevant internal and 
external informaƟon available up to the date of this report, to determine the impact on the Company's revenue from operaƟons 
for foreseeable future and the recoverability and carrying value of certain assets such as property, plant and equipment, 
investments, inventories, trade receivables and MAT credit. The impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the overall economic 
environment being uncertain may affect the underlying assumpƟons and esƟmates used to prepare Company's financial results, 
which may differ from that considered as at the date of approval of the financials results. 

The measures taken by the government to contain spread of the COVID-19 pandemic have had an impact on the economic 
acƟviƟes as well as on the data collecƟon mechanisms. EsƟmates are, therefore, likely to undergo sharp revisions for the 
aforesaid causes in due course. V-shaped economic recovery is expected due to mega vaccinaƟon drive, recovery in the services 
sector and strong growth in consumpƟon and investment coupled with resurgence in high frequency indicators such as power 
demand, rail freight, e-way bills, GST collecƟon, steel consumpƟon, etc

Your Company delivered a strong performance in FY 2020-21 across businesses, leading to delivery of highest ever consolidated 
profit, despite macro-economic challenges.

The Company does not anƟcipate any challenges in its ability to conƟnue as going concern or meeƟng its financial obligaƟons.

INDIAN ECONOMY RECOVERY

There were a number of posiƟve features of the Indian economy during the year under review.

A slowdown in economic growth and inflaƟon weakened the country's currency rate nearly 2.83% in 2020 from INR71.28 to 
INR73.30 to a US dollar before recovering towards the close of the financial year.

Despite the gloomy economic scenario, foreign direct investments (FDI) in India increased 13% to USD57 billion in 2020.

India jumped 14 places to 63 in the 2020 World Bank's Ease of Doing Business ranking and was the only country in the emerging 
market basket that received posiƟve FPIs of $23.6 billion in 2020; the country ranked eighth among the world's top stock markets 
with a market capitalisaƟon of $2.5 trillion in 2020.

The per capita income was esƟmated to have declined by 5% from INR1.35 lacs in 2019-20 to INR1.27 lacs in 2020-21, which was 
considered moderate in view of the extensive demand destrucƟon in the first two quarters of 2020-21.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The COVID-19 pandemic led to changes in consumpƟon habits. Digital played a pivotal role in economic recovery post pandemic. 
The new trend emerges like, WFH (work from home) has led to lesser mobility of people and higher stay at home. This has led to 
higher demand for bigger houses and improvement of home. Though the commercial space remains sluggish.

Despite of all these posiƟve factors there are threats in the form of dumping, import of low-cost products from overseas, 
increasing number of manufacturers in both organized as well as unorganized sectors, volaƟle market, may recede the projected 
growth.

Global and macro-economic factors may lead to an impact in consumer demand and sharp inflaƟon in commodity prices could 
create risks.

The government has taken important steps which have helped the Indian texƟle industry to capitalise on opportuniƟes. These 
include:  * providing adequate low-cost funding by banks. * Improving the country's export-import policies and conƟnuaƟon of 
export incenƟves. * Amending labour laws to help improve producƟvity and support smooth funcƟoning.  * Change in the 
definiƟon of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME), which form the backbone of the texƟle industry.  *Faster 
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disbursement of the texƟle ministry's special fund for the sector.

As your company's FMCG brand is well established in the market and pan India presence with dedicated channel 
partners naƟonwide and emphasis on quality and manufacture of eco friendly products serve as the tools to 
withstand compeƟƟon and move forward and achieve the esƟmated growth.

1.Financial Performance

The following are relevant financial performance details with respect to the operaƟonal performance of the Company.

Salient features relaƟng to the Profit & Loss Account:       (Rs. In Lacs) 

During the year the Company has achieved a turnover of Rs. 5531.42 lakhs and earns profit before Tax [PBT] of Rs. 
1088.39 lakh and profit aŌer taxes of Rs. lakh. The Segment wise performance has been given in financial 807.57 
statements in the Report.

KEY RATIOS

2.Outlook

There is an immense growth potenƟal in Indian texƟles and apparel industry due to several reasons. One, revival of 
demand in India's major export desƟnaƟons two, rising per capita income and disposable income in the country three, 
shiŌ in demographics four, changing lifestyles five, increasing demand for quality products, six, increase in 
parƟcipaƟon of women in workforce seven , increased penetraƟon of the organised retail and eight, highly focused 
approach and favourable policy support of the Government; all are set to fuel the demand of various texƟle and 
apparel products in the coming future.

The COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly into a global crisis since the last month of March, 2020, forcing 
governments to enforce lock-downs of all economic acƟvity. Your Company immediately shiŌed their focus towards 
ensuring the health and well-being of all employees, staffs and workers engaged across the offices and units in India. In 
the last week of March, 2020 the Company suspended its producƟon and distribuƟon faciliƟes across India 
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temporarily and moved to 'work from home'(WFH) policy for all its employees and thereby reducing potenƟal risk to 
them during the spread of the disease. Although there are uncertainƟes due to the pandemic, the Company is hopeful 
that it's the strong balance sheet posiƟon and inherent resilience of the business model will assist the Company 
navigate the challenges ahead and gain its market share.

Indian TexƟle Industry 

The texƟles and apparels sector is a major contributor to the Indian economy in terms of foreign exchange earnings 
and employment. TexƟle & garments industry in India is expected to reach US$223 Billion by 2021 from US$140.4 
Billion in 2018. India is the third-largest texƟle manufacturing industry and contributes approximately 6% to the total 
texƟle producƟon, globally. India ranks 2nd as the largest producer of texƟles and garments and is the 5th largest 
exporter of texƟles spanning apparel, home and technical products. The Indian texƟle industry is set for growth, 
buoyed by both strong domesƟc consumpƟon as well as export demand. Favourable demographic, rising per capital 
income and a shiŌ in customer preference to branded products is expected to revive the texƟle industry which has 
been severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Government of India is working on major iniƟaƟves and 
reforms in the TexƟle sector, including launch of a 'Mega Integrated TexƟle Region and Apparel (MITRA) Park' scheme 
to establish seven texƟle parks with state-of-the-art infrastructure, common uƟliƟes and R&D lab over a three-year 
period; starƟng a focused product scheme; posiƟoning the country as a global hub in the man-made fibre (MMF) and 
technical texƟles segments. CompeƟƟve advantage, robust demand, favourable government policies, increasing 
investments and urbanisaƟon are expected to be the key drivers for revival of the industry.

FMCG

Fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) is the fourth largest sector in the Indian economy. There are three main 
segments in the sector, i.e., food and beverages which accounts for 19% share; health care accounƟng for 31% share; 
and household and personal care accounƟng for 50% share. (Source: IBEF). The government has allowed 100% Foreign 
Direct Investment (FDI) in food processing and single-brand retail and 51% in mulƟ-brand retail. This would boost 
employment, supply chain and high visibility for FMCG brands across organised retail markets which in turn would 
drive consumer spending and product launches. The sector witnessed healthy FDI inflows of US$ 17.8 billion from 
April 2000 to September 2020. Fast moving consumer goods have a high inventory turnover and are contrasted with 
specialty items which have lower sales and higher carrying charges. Many retailers only carry FMCGs parƟcularly 
hypermarkets, big-box stores, and warehouse club stores. Small convenience stores also stock fast moving goods; the 
limited shelf space is filled with higher turnover items. The COVID-19 pandemic has caused an unprecedented impact 
on the global economy. It has disabled global trade and cross border transacƟons like never before. The lockdown of 
countries and economies has resulted in the overnight evaporaƟon of demand for all industries. Global supply chains 
have been hindered and it is expected that consumpƟon will pick up gradually where it was disrupted.

3.Risks and Concerns

Risks are an integral part of any business and it is essenƟal that adequate structures and processes are created to 
idenƟfy and effecƟvely miƟgate the same. While delivering on our commitments, the safety of all the stakeholders 
which are involved is of paramount importance to the Company. The Company conƟnuously monitors the 
environment in which it operates to assess any new uncertainƟes and risks that may emerge and take acƟve steps to 
miƟgate them. There are no risks that threaten the going concern of the Company. 

At the core of the company's risk-miƟgaƟng iniƟaƟves, there is a comprehensive and integrated risk management 
framework, which comprises stringent norms and regulaƟons along with a prudent control mechanism. The risk 
management approach conforms to the company's strategic direcƟon, which is in line with shareholders' desired total 
returns, the company's credit raƟngs and its desired risk appeƟte.

Global commodity inflaƟon, unpredictable economy, volaƟle business environment, credit risk, cheaper product 
availability, prevailing compeƟƟon from the unorganized sector are the various idenƟfiable risks along with 
uncontrollable external factors. However, your company can respond and cauƟously manage these risks by resorƟng 
to a conservaƟve business policy and diligent business pracƟces.
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4.Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

The Company have internal controls for its business processes across departments to ensure efficiency of operaƟons, 
compliance with internal policies and applicable laws and regulaƟons.

The Company's internal control systems play an important role and acts as a supplement to the external control 
systems. Your company has appointed an internal auditor to streamline the system and has adequate internal control 
systems to maintain accuracy in accounƟng and financial transacƟons and comply with rules and regulaƟons.

The internal control systems of the Company are monitored and evaluated by internal auditor and their finding & 
observaƟons' are reviewed by the Audit CommiƩee.

5.Human Capital

The Company's Industrial relaƟons at all the levels remained cordial throughout the year.

6.CauƟonary Note 

Important factors such as economic developments within the country, demand and supply condiƟons of the industry, 
input prices, changes in Government regulaƟons, tax laws and other factors such as liƟgaƟon and industrial relaƟons, 
influence the Company's operaƟons. This may lead to the Company's projecƟons and approximate esƟmates to 
dispose them as “forward looking statements”.

Though, these qualitaƟve aspects are usually set in the framework meaning of applicable securiƟes laws and 
regulaƟons. The actual results may someƟmes materially differ from those expressed or implied.

For M.K.Exim (India) Limited

Murli Wadhumal Dialani
Chairman

DIN: 08267828
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To the members of M.K. EXIM (INDIA) 

LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated 
financial statements of M.K. EXIM (INDIA) 
LIMITED (“ hereinafter referred to as the Holding  
Company”) and its subsidiary together referred to as 
“the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), Consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (“hereinafter referred to as the 
Consolidated financial statements”)
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('Ind AS') and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India,  of the consolidated state of affairs of the  

Company as at 31  March, 2021;  and its consolidated st

profit,  consolidated statement of changes in equity  
and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company and its subsidiary in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements 
and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is 
responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the 
Annual report, but does not include the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is 
responsible for preparation of these consolidated 
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that  give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity 
and consolidated cash flows of the group in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
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specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The holding 
company's Board of Directors is also responsible for 
ensuring accuracy of record including financial 
information considered necessary for the preparation 
of Consolidated Financial Statements. The respective 
Board of Directors of the companies including its 
subsidiary are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group, its 
subsidiary and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities ; the selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies ; making judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation  and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls ,that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material  
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by Directors of the 
Holding company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 
respective Board of Directors of the Companies are 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
The respective Board of Directors are also 
responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a  ma te r ia l  mi s s t a t emen t  when  i t  ex i s t s . 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 
exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material * 

misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery,  intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the holding company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management.

* Con c lu de  on  t he  a pp r op r i a t e n e s s  o f 
management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the companies 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the companies to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
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consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding the financial information of the 
business activities within the Group and its 
associates and joint ventures to express an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such business activities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which 
we are the independent auditors. For the business 
activities included in the consolidated financial 
statements, which have been audited by the other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with 
governance of the subsidiary company included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are 
the independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged 

with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Other Matter
We have relied upon the audit report of other auditors 
for the financial statements of its subsidiary Kolba 
Farm Fab Private Limited reflecting total assets at Rs. 
1286.35 lacs, total revenue of Rs. 441.15 lacs, net 
loss of Rs. 6.64 lacs and net cash flow amounting to 
Rs. (3.39) lacs for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in consolidated financial statements and 
our report in terms of sub sections 3 & 11 of section 
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 
subsidiary.

These financial statements have been audited by the 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to 
us by the Management and our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of these subsidiary, and our report in terms of 
subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it 
relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on 
the reports of the other auditors.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
requirements below, is not modified in respect of the 
above matters with respect to our reliance on the 
work done and the report of the other auditors and 
financial statements certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit and on the consideration of the reports of 
the other auditors on the financial statements of the 
subsidiary referred to in the Other Matters section 
above we report, to the extent applicable that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information 

and explanations, which to the best of our 
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knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the holding 
company and its subsidiary including relevant 
records relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept  
so far as appears from our examination of those 
books of the Holding Company and the report of 
the other auditors.

c. The  Consol ida ted  Ba lance  Shee t ,  the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 
Consolidated statement of changes in equity and 
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this report are in agreement with relevant  
books of account maintained by holding 
company and its subsidiary relating to the 
preparation of  Consol idated Financial 
Statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated 
Financial Statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received 
from the Directors, as on 31  March, 2021 and st

taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
Holding Company and the report of statutory 
auditors of subsidiary company, we report that 
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  st

March, 2021 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Holding company and its subsidiary and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in Annexure A which is based 
on the auditors' reports of the subsidiary 
company incorporated in India. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the 
subsidiary company.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the remuneration paid by the holding 
company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act.

h. With respect to the other matter to be included in  
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules , 
2014 in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

 i  . The consolidated financial statements 
disclose the impact of pending litigation on 
its consolidated financial position of the 
Holding and Subsidiary Company.

 ii. The Group did not have any long term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

 iii. There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the 
company.

(Rishabh Agrawal)
Partner

                                                            M. No. 412963       
UDIN :21412963AAAADE2750

For Rishabh Agrawal & Associates
                 Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 018142C)
        

Place: Jaipur  
Dated: 30 , th June 2021
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph in the Independent 
Auditors' Report of even date to the members of 
M.K. Exim (India) Limited on the consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended 31  March, st

2021.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Cause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
1.  We have audited the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting of M.K. Exim (India) 
Limited (“the Holding Company”) & its 
subsidiary company as of 31  March, 2021 in the st

conjunction with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls
2.  The respective Board of Directors of the Holding 

Company and its subsidiary are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the 
respective companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to 
respective company's policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act.

Auditor' Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

companies internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. 
Those standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness.  Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining and understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk.  The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other 
auditors in terms of their report referred to in the 
Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting
6. A company's internal financial control over 

financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that 

 i   . Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
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the assets of the company.
 ii. P r ov ide  r ea sonab le  a s su r anc e  t ha t 

transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; 
and 

 iii. Provide reasonable assurance regarding 
p reve n t ion  o f  t ime ly  de t ec t ion  o f 
unauthorised acquisition, use or disposition 
of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting
7.  Because of the inherent limitations of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion
8.  In our opinion to the best of our information 

and according to explanations given to us, the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary have, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting  were operating 
effectively as at 31  March, 2021, based on st

the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters
9.  Our aforesaid reports under section 143(3)(i) 

o f  the  Act  adequacy  and opera t ing 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 
the subsidiary company, is based on the 
corresponding report on the auditors of 
subsidiary company. Our opinion is not 
qualified in respect of this matter.

       

(Rishabh Agrawal)
Partner

                                                            M. No. 412963       
UDIN :21412963AAAADE2750

For Rishabh Agrawal & Associates
                 Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 018142C)
        

Place: Jaipur  
Dated: 30 , th June 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  st

MARCH, 2021

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION
M.K. EXIM (INDIA ) Limited (“the Company”) is a 
listed entity incorporated in India. The addresses of 
its registered office and principal place of business 
are disclosed in the introduction to the annual report.

1.Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of preparation:

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company have been prepared to comply with the 
Indian Accounting standards ('Ind AS'), including the 
rules notified under the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared under the historical 
cost convention on accrual and going concern basis. 
The accounting policies have been consistently 
applied by the company are consistent with those 
used in the previous year.
 
The Company's Consolidated Financial Statements 
are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its 
functional currency.

Use of Estimates:
 
The preparation of financial statements are in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles, requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the results of operations during the reporting period. 
Although these es t imates are based upon 
management's best knowledge of current events and 
actions, actual results could differ from these 
estimates.

2. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND 
EQUITY ACCOUNTING
The consolidated financial statements relate to M.K. 
EXIM (INDIA) Limited (“the Company”) and its 
subsidiary / associate company. 
The financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiary are combined on a line by line basis by 

adding together like items of assets, liabilities, 
equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully 
eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group 
transactions. Profits or losses resulting from intra-
group transactions that are recognized in assets, such 
as inventory and property, plant & equipment, are 
eliminated in full. Offset (eliminate) the carrying 
amount of the parent's investment in subsidiary. Non-
Controlling Interest's share of profit / loss of 
consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified 
and adjusted against the income of the group in order 
to arrive at the net income attributable to 
shareholders of the Company. Non-Controlling 
Interest's share of net assets of consolidated 
subsidiaries is identified and presented in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet separate from liabilities 
and the equity of the Company's shareholders.
Associate is an entity over which the group has 
significant influence but not control or joint control. 
This is generally the case where the group holds 
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. 
Investment in associate is accounted for using the 
equity method of accounting, after initially being 
recognised at cost.
Under the equity method of accounting, the 
investments are initially recognised at cost and 
adjusted thereafter to recognise the group's share of 
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in 
profit and loss, and the group's share of other 
comprehensive income of the investee in other 
comprehensive income. Dividends received or 
receivable from associates and joint venture are 
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of 
the investment. When the group's share of losses in an 
equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its 
interest in the entity, including any other unsecured 
long-term receivables, the group does not recognise 
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the other entity. 
Unrealised gains on transactions between the group, 
its associate and joint venture companies are 
eliminated to the extent of the group's interest in these 
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless 
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment 
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity 
accounted investees have been changed where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies 
adopted by the group. The carrying amount of equity 
accounted investments are tested for impairment.
The Company MK Exim (India) Limited held 
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70.71% of holding in the equity shares of the 
Company Kolba Farm Fab Pvt Ltd at the beginning 
of the FY 2020-21. The Company Kolba Farm Fab 
Pvt Ltd issued shares in FY 2020-21 which resulted 
in reduction of holding of MK Exim (India) Limited 
in Kolba Farm Fab Pvt Ltd from 70.71% to 48.98%. 
Thus Kolba Farm Fab Pvt Ltd became associate 
company from subsidiary of MK Exim (India) 
Limited as on the reporting date 31.03.2021.

3. Tangible Fixed Assets: Fixed assets are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the 
purchase price and directly attributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its 
intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

 Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of 
tangible assets which takes substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use are also 
included to the extent they relate to the period till 
such assets are ready to be put to use. Assets 
under installation or under construction as at the 
Balance Sheet date are shown as Capital Work in 
Progress.

4. Intangible Fixed Assets:Intangible assets are 
recognized when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the 
asset can be measured reliably.

5. Impairment of Assets:The carrying amounts of 
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if 
there is any indication of impairment based on 
internal / external factors. An impairment loss is 
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's 
net selling price and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and risks 
specific to the asset. Net selling price is the 
amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an 
a r m ' s  l e n g t h  t r a n s a c t i o n  b e t w e e n 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of 
disposal.

 After impairment, depreciation is provided on 
the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 
remaining useful life.

6. Depreciation and Amortisation: Depreciation 
on the fixed assets is provided under straight-line 
method as per the rates prescribed in Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013 or at rates 
permissible under applicable local laws so as to 
charge off the cost of assets to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss over their estimated useful life, 
except on the following categories of assets:

 (i)  Assets costing up to Rs.5,000/- are fully 
depreciated in the year of acquisition.

(ii) Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are 
amortised over the primary period of lease.

(iii) Intangible assets are amortised over their useful 
life of 5 years.

7. Foreign Currency Transaction :All Foreign 
currency transaction are recorded at the rates 
prevailing on the date. Foreign Currency 
transaction remaining unsettled at the  Balance 
Sheet date are translated at the exchange rate 
prevailing at the  Balance Sheet date or at the rate 
which is likely to be realized in certain specific 
c a s e s .  T h e  e x c h a n g e  d i ff e r e n c e  o n 
settlements/conversion are credited/charged to 
profit. The Company has not entered into any 
forward exchange contract during the period.

8. Investments: Investments, which are readily 
realizable and intended to be held for not more 
than one year from the date on which such 
investments are made, are classified as current 
investments. All other investments are classified 
as long-term investments.

 On initial recognition, all investments are 
measured at cost. The cost comprises the 
purchase price and directly attributable 
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and 
duties. If an investment is acquired, or partly 
acquired by the issue of shares or the other 
securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of 
securities issued. If an investment is acquired in 
exchange for another asset, the acquisition is 
determined by reference to the fair value of the 
asset given up or by reference to the fair value of 
the investment acquired, whichever is more 
clearly evident.

 Current investments are carried at the lower of 
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cost and fair value determined on an individual 
investment basis. Long- term investments are 
carried at cost. However, provision for 
diminution in value is made to recognize a 
decline other than temporary in the value of the 
long term investments.

 On disposal of an investment, the difference 
between its carrying amount and net disposal 
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement 
of profit and loss.

9. Employee Benefits: Employee benefits include 
provident fund, employee state insurance 
scheme and gratuity fund.

 The company has taken a policy from Life 
Insurance Corporation of India for the payment 
of gratuity. The gratuity has been provided in 
books on accrual basis. 

10. Inventories:Stock in trade, stores and spares are 
valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable 
value. Net realizable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business, 
less estimated costs of completion and estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of stock in 
trade procured for specific projects is assigned by 
specific identification of individual costs of each 
item. Costs of stock in trade, that are 
interchangeable and not specific to any project is 
determined using the weighted average cost 
formula. Cost of stores and spare parts is 
determined using weighted average cost.

11. Borrowing Costs: Borrowing costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the 
cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing 
costs are expensed in the period they occur. 
Borrowing costs consist of interest, exchange 
differences arising from foreign currency 
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an 
adjustment to the interest cost and other costs 
that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds.

12. Revenue Recognit ion:  Revenue from 

Operations:- Sale and operating income includes 
sale of products, services, profit from partnership 
firms, income from job work services etc. Sale of 
goods are recognised, net of returns and trade 
discounts, on transfer of significant risks and 
rewards of ownership to the buyer. Sales exclude 
sales tax and value added tax. Sale of services are 
recognised when services are rendered and 
related costs are incurred. Export benefit are 
accounted for in the year of exports based on 
eligibility and when there is no Uncertainty in 
receiving the same.

  Interest income is recognised Other income:-
on time proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 
Dividend income is recognised when right to 
receive is established. Rent income is booked as 
per terms of contracts.

13. Taxation:Tax expense comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current income tax expense 
comprises taxes on income from operations in 
India and in foreign jurisdictions. Income tax 
payable in India is determined in accordance 
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 
and tax expense relating to overseas operations is 
determined in accordance with tax laws 
applicable in countries where such operations 
are domiciled.

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized on 
timing differences being the difference between 
taxable income and accounting income that originate 
in one period and are capable of reversal in one or 
more subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 
Deferred income tax relating to items recognized 
directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in 
the statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax assets 
and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on 
income levied by the same governing taxation laws
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable 
timing differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can 
be realized. In situations where the Company has 
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, 
all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is 
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence 
that they can be  realized against future taxable 
profits. In the situations where the Company is 
entitled to a tax holiday under the Income realized 
against future taxable profits. In the situations where 
the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the 
Income tax Act, 1961 enacted in India, no deferred 
tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of 
timing differences which reverse during the tax 
holiday period, to the extent the Company's gross 
total income is subject to the deduction during the tax 
holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing 
differences which reverse after the tax holiday period 
is recognized in the year in which the timing 
differences originate.

 At each balance sheet date the Company re-
assesses recognized and unrecognized deferred tax 
assets. The Company writes-down the carrying 
amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no 
longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 
case may be, that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which the deferred tax asset 
can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to 
the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or 
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available. The 
Company recognizes unrecognized deferred tax 
assets to the extent that it has become reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realized.

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is 
recognized as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the Company will 
pay normal income tax during the specified period. In 
the year in which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to 
be recognized as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in guidance note issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
the said asset is created by way of a credit to the 
statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit 
Entitlement. The Company reviews the MAT Credit 
Entitlement at each balance sheet date and writes 
down the carrying amount of the MAT Credit 
Entitlement to the extent there is no longer 
convincing evidence to the effect that Company will 
pay normal income tax during the specified period.

14. Earnings per share:Basic earnings per share 
are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss 
for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period.

  For the purpose of calculating diluted 
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

15. Provisions:A provision is recognized when 
there exists a present obligation as a result of 
past events and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to 
present value and are determined based on best 
estimates required to settle the obligation at the 
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at 
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimates.

16. Cash and cash equivalent: Cash and cash 
equivalents for the purposes of cash flow 
statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and 
short term deposits with banks with an original 
maturity of three months or less.

17. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets:-Provisions are recognized 
only when there is a present obligation as a result 
of past events and when a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made. 

Contingent Liabilities is disclosed in Notes to the 
account for:-
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  Possible obligations which will be confirmed 
only by  future events nowholly within the 
control of the company or

 Present Obligations arising from past events 
where it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or a reliable estimate of the amount of the 
obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial 
statement since this may result in the recognition of 
the income that may never be realized.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the members of M.K. EXIM (INDIA) 
LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone 
financial statements of M.K. EXIM (INDIA) 
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), statement of changes in equity and Cash  

Flow Statement for the year then ended and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended 
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2021; and its profit,  total 
comprehensive income, the change in equity  and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act 
(SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial 

statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 
standalone financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements 
and Auditor's Report Thereon
*  The Company's Board of Directors is responsible 

for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board's 
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report and 
Business Responsibility Report, but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements, 
standalone financial statements and our auditor's 
report thereon.

*  Our opinion on the standalone financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

*  In connection with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

*  If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information; we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for Standalone 
Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements to give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
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cash flows of the company in accordance with the Ind 
AS and accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatements, whether due to 
fraud and error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material 

misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery,  intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management.

 C o nc l u de  o n  t he  a p p r op r i a t e n e s s  o f  
management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
standalone financial statements represent the 
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underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
standalone financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter
We have relied upon the audit report of other auditors 
for the financial statements of its office at Mumbai 
reflecting total assets at Rs. 1488.52 lacs, total 
revenue of Rs. 3400.72 lacs and net profit of Rs. 
1025.73 lacs for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in Standalone financial statements and 

our report in terms of sub sections 3 & 11 of section 
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 
office.

These financial statements have been audited by the 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to 
us by the Management and our opinion on the 
standalone financial statements, in so far as it relates 
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of 
the branch, and our report in terms of subsection (3) 
of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid branch is based solely on the reports of the 
other auditors.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements 
and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
requirements below, is not modified in respect of the 
above matters with respect to our reliance on the 
work done and the report of the other auditors and 
financial statements certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) 

Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we 
give in the Annexure A, a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said 
order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based 
on our audit and on the consideration of the 
reports of the other auditors on the financial 
statements of the branch at Mumbai referred to in 
the Other Matters section we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations, which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the company 
so far as appears from our examination of those 
books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report 
are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account.
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone 
Financial Statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received 
from the Directors, as on 31  March, 2021 and st

taken on record by the Board of Directors, we 
report that none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 31  March, 2021 from being appointed as a st

director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting of the 
company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure 
B.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended, n our opinion and to the best of our  i
information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act.

h. With respect to the other matter to be included in 
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules , 
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

I. The company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements.

ii. The company did not have any long term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to 
be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the company.
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ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN OUR
REPORT OF  EVEN DATE ON THE  
ACCOUNTS OF M.K. EXIM (INDIA) 
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
ON 31 MARCH, 2021ST

1. (a) The company has maintained proper records    
showing  fu l l  pa r t i cu la r s  inc luding  
quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets. 

 (b) All the assets have been physically verified by   
the management at the end of the year, which, 
in our opinion is reasonable having regard to 
the size of the company and the nature of its 
assets. No material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification.

 (c) The title deeds of immovable properties as 
disclosed in fixed assets are held in the name 
of the company.

2. The inventory excluding stocks with third parties  
has been physically verified during the year at 
reasonable intervals by the management. The 
procedure of physical verification of inventories 
followed by the management is adequate in 
relation to the size of the company and the nature 
of its business. The company is maintaining 
proper records of inventory. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on physical 
verification.

3. The company has not granted any loans to 
companies, firms or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

4.   In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the company has 
complied with the provisions of sec. 185 & 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans 
and investments made, and guarantees and 
security provided by it.

5. In our opinion and according to the information  
and explanations given to us, the company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public within the 
meaning of sections 73, 74, 75 & 76 of the Act and 

Rules framed thereunder. And hence reporting 
under clause (5) of the order is not applicable.

6. We have been explained that the maintenance of  
cost records has not been prescribed by the 
Central Government under sub section (1) of 
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

7. According to the information and explanations  
given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

  (a)  The Company has generally been regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Provident Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Income tax, Goods and Service 
Tax, Customs Duty, cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it to the 
appropriate authorities.

  (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service 
Tax, Customs Duty, cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 
for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable.

 (C)  There are no disputed dues of Customs Duty, 
Sales Tax, Service Tax and State Value Added 
Tax which have not been deposited as on 
March 31, 2021. 

8.  In our opinion and according to the information   
and explanations given to us, the company has 
not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial 
institutions, banks, government and debenture 
holders as at the balance sheet date. The 
Company has not taken any loans or borrowings 
from government. The Company has not issued 
any debentures.  

9.  The company has applied the term loan, the 
purpose for which the loan was obtained. The 
Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments).

10. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material fraud on or by the 
company or by its officers or employees has been 
noticed or reported during the year.
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11.  The company has paid/provided for managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 
197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

12.  As the company is not a Nidhi company and the 
Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the 
order are not applicable to the company. 

13.  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all 
transactions with the related parties and the 
details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. The company has made preferential allotment of 
equity shares during FY 2020-21. The company 
raised Rs. 3.58 crores by issuing 17,90,000/- fully 
paid up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each for Rs. 20/- 
per share at premium of Rs. 10/- per share.  The 
requirement of section 42 of the Companies Act, 
2013 have been complied with and the amount 
raised have been used for the purposes for which 
the funds were raised.

15. The company has not entered into any non cash 
transactions with its directors or persons      
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions 
of clause 3(xv) of the order are not applicable to 
the company.

16. The company is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 
3(xvi) of the order are not applicable to the 
company.

 

            

(Rishabh Agrawal)
Partner

                                                            M. No. 412963       
UDIN :21412963AAAADD9979

For Rishabh Agrawal & Associates
                 Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 018142C)
        

Place: Jaipur  
Dated: 30 , th June 2021
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph in the Independent 
Auditors' Report of even date to the members of 
M.K. Exim (India) Limited on the standalone 
financial statements for the year ended 31  March, st

2021
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Cause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
1.  We have audited the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting of M.K. Exim (India) 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31  March, 2021 st

in the conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date.

 
Management's Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls
2. The Company's management is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  i n c l u d e  t h e  d e s i g n , 
implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act.

Auditor' Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness.  Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining and understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk.  The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting
6. A company's internal financial control over 

financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that 

 i. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company;

 ii. P rov ide  r easonab le  a s su rance  t ha t 
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transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; 
and 

 iii. Provide reasonable assurance regarding 
p re ve n t ion  o f  t ime ly  de t e c t i o n  o f 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting
7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting  were 
operating effectively as at 31  March, 2021, st

based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

Other Matters
9. Our aforesaid reports under section 143(3)(i) of 

the Act adequacy and operating effectiveness of 

the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting insofar as it relates to the branch at 
Mumbai, is based on the corresponding report on 
the auditors of Mumbai branch of the company. 
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this 
matter.

(Rishabh Agrawal)
Partner

                                                            M. No. 412963       
UDIN :21412963AAAADD9979

For Rishabh Agrawal & Associates
                 Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 018142C)
        

Place: Jaipur  
Dated: 30 , th June 2021
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  st

MARCH, 2021

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION
 M.K. EXIM (INDIA ) Limited (“the Company”) 

is a listed entity incorporated in India.The 
addresses of its registered office and principal 
place of business are disclosed in the introduction 
to the annual report.

1. Significant Accounting Policies:
 Basis of preparation:
 The Financial Statements of the Company have 

been prepared to comply with the Indian 
Accounting standards ('Ind AS'), including the 
rules notified under the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements 
have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention on accrual and going concern basis. 
The accounting policies have been consistently 
applied by the company are consistent with those 
used in the previous year.

 The Company's Financial Statements are 
presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its 
functional currency.

 Use of Estimates:
 The preparation of financial statements in 

conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the results of operations during the 
reporting period. Although these estimates are 
based upon management's best knowledge of 
current events and actions, actual results could 
differ from these estimates.

2. Tangible Fixed Assets:Fixed assets are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the 
purchase price and directly attributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its 
intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

 Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of 
tangible assets which takes substantial period of 

time to get ready for its intended use are also 
included to the extent they relate to the period till 
such assets are ready to be put to use. Assets under 
installation or under construction as at the 
Balance Sheet date are shown as Capital Work in 
Progress.

3. Intangible Fixed Assets: Intangible assets are 
recognized when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset 
will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset 
can be measured reliably.

4. Impairment of Assets: The carrying amounts of 
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if 
there is any indication of impairment based on 
internal / external factors. An impairment loss is 
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net 
selling price and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and risks 
specific to the asset. Net selling price is the 
amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an 
arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, 
willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

 After impairment, depreciation is provided on the 
revised carrying amount of the asset over its 
remaining useful life.

5. Depreciation and Amortisation: Depreciation 
on the fixed assets is provided under straight-line 
method as per the rates prescribed in  Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013 or at rates permissible 
under applicable local laws so as to charge off the 
cost of assets to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
over their estimated useful life, except on the 
following categories of assets

 (i) Assets costing up to Rs. 5, 000/- are fully 
depreciated in the year of acquisition.

 (ii) Leasehold land and leasehold improvements 
are amortised over the primary period of lease.

 (iii) Intangible assets are amortised over their 
useful life of 5 years.
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6. Foreign Currency Transaction :All Foreign 
currency transactions are recorded at the rates 
prevailing on the date. Foreign Currency 
transaction remaining unsettled at the  Balance 
Sheet date are translated at the exchange rate 
prevailing at the  Balance Sheet date or at the rate 
which is likely to be realized in certain specific 
c a s e s .  T h e  e x c h a n g e  d i ff e r e n c e  o n 
settlements/conversion are credited/charged to 
profit. The Company has not entered into any 
forward exchange contract during the period.

7. Investments: Investments, which are readily 
realizable and intended to be held for not more 
than one year from the date on which such 
investments are made, are classified as current 
investments. All other investments are classified 
as long-term investments.

  On initial recognition, all investments are 
measured at cost. The cost comprises the 
purchase price and directly attributable 
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and 
duties. If an investment is acquired, or partly 
acquired by the issue of shares or the other 
securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of 
securities issued. If an investment is acquired in 
exchange for another asset, the acquisition is 
determined by reference to the fair value of the 
asset given up or by reference to the fair value of 
the investment acquired, whichever is more 
clearly evident.

  Current investments are carried at the lower 
of cost and fair value determined on an individual 
investment basis. Long- term investments are 
carried at cost. However, provision for 
diminution in value is made to recognize a decline 
other than temporary in the value of the long term 
investments.

  On disposal of an investment, the difference 
between its carrying amount and net disposal 
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of 
profit and loss.

8. Employee Benefits: Employee benefits include 
provident fund, employee state insurance scheme 
and gratuity fund.

  The company has taken a policy from Life 
Insurance Corporation of India for the payment of 
gratuity. The gratuity has been provided in books 

on accrual basis. 
9. Inventories: Stock in trade, stores and spares are 

valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable 
value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale. Cost of stock in trade 
procured for specific projects is assigned by 
specific identification of individual costs of each 
i tem. Costs of stock in trade,  that  are 
interchangeable and not specific to any project is 
determined using the weighted average cost 
formula. Cost of stores and spare parts is 
determined using weighted average cost.

10. Borrowing Costs: Borrowing costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the 
cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing 
costs are expensed in the period they occur. 
Borrowing costs consist of interest, exchange 
differences arising from foreign currency 
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an 
adjustment to the interest cost and other costs that 
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds.

11. Revenue Recognition: 
 Revenue from Operations:-Sale and operating 

income includes sale of products, services, profit 
from partnership firms, income from job work 
services etc. Sale of goods arerecognised, net of 
returns and trade discounts, on transfer of 
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the 
buyer. Sales exclude sales tax and value added 
tax.Sale of services arerecognised when services 
are rendered and related costs are incurred. 
Export benefits are accounted for in the year of 
exports based on eligibility and when there is no 
Uncertainty in receiving the same.

  Interest income is recognised on Other income:-
time proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 
Dividend income is recognised when right to 
receive is established. Rent income is booked as 
per terms of contracts.
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12. Taxation:Tax expense comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current income tax expense 
comprises taxes on income from operations in 
India and in foreign jurisdictions. Income tax 
payable in India is determined in accordance with 
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and tax 
expense relating to overseas operations is 
determined in accordance with tax laws applicable 
in countries where such operations are domiciled.

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized on 
timing differences being the difference between 
taxable income and accounting income that originate 
in one period and are capable of reversal in one or 
more subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 
Deferred income tax relating to items recognized 
directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in 
the statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax assets 
and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on 
income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable 
timing differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can 
be realized. In situations where the Company has 
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, 
all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is 
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence 
that they can be  realized against future taxable 
profits. In the situations where the Company is 
entitled to a tax holiday under the Income realized 
against future taxable profits. In the situations where 
the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the 
Income tax Act, 1961 enacted in India, no deferred 
tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of 
timing differences which reverse during the tax 
holiday period, to the extent the Company's gross 
total income is subject to the deduction during the tax 
holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing 
differences which reverse after the tax holiday period 

is recognized in the year in which the timing 
differences originate.

At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses 
recognized and unrecognized deferred tax assets. 
The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a 
deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer 
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case 
may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which the deferred tax asset can be 
realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the 
extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available. The Company 
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the 
extent that it has become reasonably certain or 
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is 
recognized as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the Company will 
pay normal income tax during the specified period. In 
the year in which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to 
be recognized as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in guidance note issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
the said asset is created by way of a credit to the 
statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit 
Entitlement. The Company reviews the MAT Credit 
Entitlement at each balance sheet date and writes 
down the carrying amount of the MAT Credit 
Entitlement to the extent there is no longer 
convincing evidence to the effect that Company will 
pay normal income tax during the specified period.

13. Earnings per share: Basic earnings per share are 
calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period.For the purpose of 
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net 
profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

14. Provisions: A provision is recognized when 
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there exists a present obligation as a result of past 
events and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to 
present value and are determined based on best 
estimates required to settle the obligation at the 
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at 
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimates.

15. Cash and cash equivalent: Cash and cash 
equivalents for the purposes of cash flow 
statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and 
short term deposits with banks with an original 
maturity of three months or less.

16. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets:- Provisions are recognized 
only when there is a present obligation as a result 
of past events and when a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made.

 Contingent Liabilities is disclosed in Notes to the 
account for:-

* Possible obligations which will be confirmed only 
by future events not wholly within the control of 
the company or

* Present Obligations arising from past events 
where it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or a reliable estimate of the amount of the 
obligation cannot be made.

  
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial 
statement since this may result in the recognition of 
the income that may never be realized.
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